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TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

Incorporated June 25, 1/779 Anno Domini 
Total Area 16,192 Acres, Land Area 14,144 Acres 

Water Area 2,048 Acres 

Population (1950 Census) 
Population (1960 Census) 
Population (1970 Census) 
Population (1980 Census) 
Population (1990 Census) 

Second Congressional District 

Second Councilor District 

Fifth State Senatorial District 

United States Senators 

Warren Rudman of Nashua through 1992 
Robert Smith of Tuftonboro through 1996 

Representative in Congress 

Dick Swett of Bow through 1992 

State Senator of New Hampshire 

Ralph Degnan Hough of Lebanon through 1992 

Representatives to General Court 

William F. Kidder of New London through 1992 
Alf E. Jacobson of New London through 1992 

Avis Nichols of Warner through 1992 

County Commissioner 

Stuart D. Trachy of Franklin through 1992 

Executive Councilor 

Peter J. Spaulding of Concord through 1992 

D 

1484 
1738 
2230 
2893 
3180 



ELECTED TOWN OFFICIALS 
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James W. Moreland, Chairman ’91 

R. Peter Bianchi, ’92 

Harold Buker, Jr., ’93 
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Lois E. Marshall, ’91 
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Moderator 
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Harry W. Blunt, IV, Chairman, ’92 

William S. Berger, ’91 

F. Read Clarke, ’92 
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Prentice Horne, ’91 

William T. Andrews, ’93 

Douglas Atkins, ’93 

William F. Kidder, Jr., ’93 

Fire Chef 

Peter S. Stanley, ’91 

Trustee of Trust Funds 

Richard N. Brady, Chairman, ’93 

Shelby C. Blunt, ’91 

Peter W. Hager, 92 

Board of Sewer Commissioners 

John Cummings, 93 

Thomas R. Miller, Chairman, ’92 

Ann Beardsley, ’91 
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Walton W. Chadwick, Chairman, ’91 

Marion C. Hafner, ’93 

Charles Hafner, ’92 
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Dana M. Stanley, Chairman, ’96 

Anna Rich, ’91 

Virginia A. Cooper, ’92 

Tracy Memonal Library Trustees 

George Doolittle, Chairman, ’91 

Linda Miller, Co-Chairman, ’91 

Nancy Muller, ’92 

Ann M. Linehan, ’93 

Robert T. Wallace, ’93 

Janice C. Kidder, ’91 

Nancy Nichols, ’91 

APPOINTED TOWN OFFICIALS 

Tax Collector 

Lois Marshall, ’91 

Deputy Town Clerk 

Grace Granger, 91 

Deputy Tax Collector 

Grace Granger, 91 

Deputy Treasurer 

Robert Wright, ’91 

Administrative Assistant 

Frederick W. Welch, ’92 

Recreation Commission 

John F. Hollinger, Chairman, ’92 

Paul A. Messer, ’92 

Laurie D. Bride, ’93 

Steven Hadley, ’93 

Sherida Ensign, ’91 



Conservation Commission 

Vernon H. Adams, Chairman, ’93 

Katharine T. Murray, Secretary, ’91 

George Payne, ’93 

Luther M. Child, ’92 

Linda Kilar, ’92 
Herwood W. Curtiss, ’93 

Sue Ellen Andrews, ’92 

Esther Currier, Life Member Emeritus 

Planning Board 

Charles Mortensen, Chairman, ’91 

Paul J. Linehan, ’92 

Robert W. Wright, ’93 

Carolyn Marshall ’93 

Laurie DiClerico, ’92 

Sydney L. Crook, 91 

Sue Ellen Andrews (Conservation Member) 

Harold Buker, Jr. (Selectmen’s Representative) 

Board of Fire Engineers 

James A. Granger, °93 

Laurids T. Lauridsen, Jr., ’91 

Donald Jones, ’92 

Forest Fire Wardens 

Peter S. Stanley, Warden 

Jay Bewley, Deputy Warden 

James Granger, Deputy Warden 

Pete Lauridsen, Deputy Warden 

Fire Department Personnel 

Peter S. Stanley, Chief 

Pete Lauridsen, Deputy Chief 

Walter Partridge, Captain 

Jamie Lewis, Ist Lt., Inspector 

Dan Lewis, 2nd Lt. 

Nancy Erickson, 3rd Lt. 

Amy Carrier, 4th Lt. 

Ed Broadhead, Company Clerk 

Tom Armen 

Larry Ballin 

Harry Barrett 

Bob Barrett 
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Jay Bewley 

Bob Brown 

Scott Brown 

Bob Buckley 

Wayne Curtiss 

Sean Cushing 

Dave Eberly 

Jen Ellis 

Eric Ensign 

Steve Ensign 

Frank Finger 

Jim Granger 

Christopher Hoffman 

Christopher Holm 

Don Jones 

Bud Lauridsen 

Peter Lewis 

Doug MacMichael 

Doug Mathewson 

Paul Messer 

Tom Paige 

Deak Pellerin 

Bud Prew 

Roger Prior 

Bruce Sanborn 

Bill Taylor 

David White 

Members of the New London Police Department 

Stuart F. Sidmore, Jr., Police Chief 

David J. Seastrand, Sargeant 

Donald W. Kimtis, Jr., Patrolman 

Christopher Currier, Patrolman 

David White, Patrolman 

Edward Kinzer, Patrolman 

Howard Eaton, Part-time 

James St. Martin, Part-time 

Harry Barrett, Part-time 

Deborah Wheeler, Part-time 

Dawn Famiglietti, Part-time 

Craig Galluzzo, Part-time 

Richard Lee, Part-time 



Members of the New London Dispatch 

Deborah K. Wheeler, Chief Dispatcher/Administrative Coordinator 

Dawn E. Famiglietti, Dispatcher 

Lisa A. Cahill, Dispatcher 

Julianne Saxby, Dispatcher 

Kimberly G. Edgecomb, Part-time 

Randall Erk, Part-time 
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James St. Martin, Equipment Operator 
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Merle Kenyon, Equipment Operator 
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Robert Lee, Transfer Station Operator 

Catherine Peirce, Recycling Attendant 

Elise Allard, Recycling Attendant 

Town Health Officer 
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Assistant Health Officer 

Donald Lamson, ’91 

Tree Warden 

Robert Fraley, ’91 

Emergency Management Director 

Stuart F. Sidmore, Jr., ’91 

Emergency Management Committee 

Frederick Welch 

Richard Lee 
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Stuart Sidmore, Jr., Director 
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John Woodward, ’91 
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Ernest E. Welch, ’93 

H. Sumner Stanley, 791 

Ruth (Sue) Clough, ’93 

Brian J. Prescott, ’92 

Charles H. Marston (Alternate), 92 

Joan S. Bucklin (Alternate), 92 

Anne C. Biuso (Alternate), 93 

Robert A. Foose (Alternate), ’91 

Gordon Marshall (Alternate), ’91 

Town History and Archives Committee 

Margaret L. Moreland, Chairman, ’93 

Walton W. Chadwick, ’93 

Robert J. Livingston, ’92 

Doris M. Cutter, ’92 

Deborah Stanley, ’92 

Constance Granger, ’91 

Robert M. Lovely, Jr., ’91 

Mildred C. Tunis, Life 

Town Road Agent 

Frederick W. Welch, ’91 

Representatives to Regional Refuse Disposal District 

Marilyn B. Andrews, ’93 

Richard S. Biddle, ’93 

Dana M. Stanley (Alternate), 93 
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Sydney L. Crook, 91 

David W. Howard, ’91 
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Thomas Miller 

Carolyn Pierzchala 
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Mary N. Wright 

Steven M. Mendelson 

Robert G. MacMichael 

Carolyn J. Reynolds 



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

The growth of New London for the tax year 1990 was 1.52% as measured by 

the increase in valuation. The valuation of the town increased $6,642 ,789.00 to 

$443,859,765.00. The equalized valuation went from 89% to 88%, which means 

that real estate sales on an average are selling at a price above their 1988 ap- 

praised value. This trend again in 1990 is being led by lakefront properties. 

In the year 1990, the Selectmen issued 134 building permits: of which 112 were 

for additions, garages, renovations, decks etc., 12 were for new single-family dwell- 

ings, and 4 renewals. The remaining number was composed of 1 College recrea- 

tional facility, 1 demolition, 1 flagpole, 1 scoreboard, 1 footbridge, and 1 conver- 

sion. In the tax year March 31, 1990, 10 new buildings were added to the tax rolls. 

The Town’s portion of the 1990 tax rate was $3.81 — down $.68 or 15.14% 

from the 1989 rate. This turned out to be a real help to the taxpayers in a year 

when the County’s portion went up $.25 or 18.12% and the School’s portion 

went up $.43 or 7.17%. The offsetting decrease allowed the total tax to remain 

the same as the previous year. This decrease in the Town’s portion was predicted 

from the previous year. The Town’s portion in 1989 had increased $1.02 or 29.39%, 

and if you remember, the Selectmen made two settlements which they believed 

saved the Town a large sum of money in the long run, but drove the rate up in 

one year — 1989. You also remember the Selectmen stating that they would try 

to hold the Town’s portion of the tax rate to 5%. The 1988 Town’s portion was 

$3.47, and two 5% increases would bring the rate to $3.83 and we are at $3.81. 

It would appear that we are on target and intend to be at 5% or below this year. 

In tough economic times, you the taxpayers are to be commended for 82% 

of you paid your taxes to the Town by their due date. This allows us to operate 

on our own funds without using borrowed money which in this year would have 

been very expensive. 

One of the cases we were able to settle out of court in the later part of 1989 

was the Kezar Lake suit. As part of the settlement we have agreed on behalf 

of the Town to fund a maximum of two treatments of the lake over a period not 

to exceed 15 years. The settlement also spelled out an elaborate system which 

would trigger these treatments. These treatments are estimated to cost approx- 

imately $120,000.00 each, in 1989 dollars. The request for the first of these 

treatments appears on the warrant this year. Under the terms of the agreement 

it may not be possible to wait for a Town Meeting to fund a treatment. It is also 

hoped that the interest earned on these funds might offset the inflation of the 

costs. This amount is pledged from surplus which will be offset in the most part 

by the two items that follow. 

As you now know the hope of some kind of an easement to protect the view 

from Little Sunapee Road over the Messer property has not and will not 

materialize. We need to thank all the people who spent many hours working on 

this project. 
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During the year 1990 many hours have been spent in analyzing the Town’s cash 

flow and as a result we have been able to better invest short-term excess funds 

and increase our Interest Income by 34%. 

The Town and the State of New Hampshire have now set up a timetable for 

the closure of the landfill on Mountain Road. The plan calls for the completion 

of all the details by fall 1991. Bid specifications to go out in late 1991, to be returned 

so that the process will be ready for a vote at the regular 1992 Town Meeting. 

The work will be started in June 1992 and completed by November 1992. It is 

our hope that no additional snags will be encountered and that we can complete 

the project being a good neighbor to our friends in Wilmot. Based on the infor- 

mation we have at this point in time, the level of funding will not increase. 

Last year we voted to put an addition on our library, and as you have seen, 

it happened. The addition is in keeping with the existing building and actually 

enhances the structure. We have been told that the contractor is on schedule 

and that the building should be completed on time. A vote of thanks must be 

given to the building committee and the many volunteers that helped in the moving. 

The Transfer Station has met all our goals and continues to outdo its own 

records. With the tipping fees increasing, it becomes more important that we 

increase our recycling efforts. At this point in time, we are recycling 25.02% of 

our solid waste. We must, together, find ways to increase this percentage. Without 

your help we could not have done it — Thank You! 

We have started the work in the Town Hail. However, we have had a small 

setback. During a wind storm last November the front doors of the Town Hall 

blew off. We received the ‘‘word’’ NOT to change the style or size of the doors. 

The same size wood doors have been ordered. The windows have been recaulked 

and rehung so they are now tight and work. The registers have been removed 

and the open space filled in with oak flooring. We can now start the replastering, 

where needed, and the painting. We hope that by Town Meeting you will be able 

to see a difference. 

The Selectmen of the seven Towns in the Kearsarge Regional School District 

now meet on a regular basis and this is improving intertown relationships. We 

have learned that much can be gained by sharing problems with each other. Also 

a better relationship with the Kearsarge Regional School District has been 

achieved. 

The Selectmen thank each of you who generously gave of your time and ex- 

pertise to the town this past year. Working together, we can make New London 

an even better place to live. 

Respectfully submitted, 

JAMES W. MORELAND 

Chairman 

R. PETER BIANCHI 

HAROLD W. BUKER, JR. 
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NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNERS 

Effective with the year 1987 the owners of real property 
will not be required to file an Inventory of Taxable 
Property per a vote of the Board of selectmen to adopt 
the provisions of RSA 74:4a. 

NOTICE TO CURRENT USE APPLICANTS 

New applicants for Current Use must fully complete a 
current use application form with a map showing clearly 
the land to be considered for Current Use. All 
applications and maps must be on file with the Board of 
Selectmen by April 15, 1991. 

TOWN HISTORY - MIRROR TO AMERICA 

The office of the Town Clerk has available for sale, 

during regular business hours, copies of Mirror to 
America, A History of New London, New Hampshire, 1900 - 
1950, at a cost of $10.00 per copy. 
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TOWN MEETING — MARCH 13, 1990 

BALLOTING — WHIPPLE MEMORIAL HALL 

The meeting was called to order by Moderator Hilary P. Cleveland at 10:00 

a.m. to act upon Article 1, Parts A and B and the polls were declared open. 

At 12:00 noon James Moreland made a motion to recess the Meeting, to 

reconvene at 7:00 p.m. Wednesday evening at the Kearsarge Regional Middle 

School to act on Articles 2 through 38; however, the polls would remain open 

until 7:00 p.m. The motion was seconded, and motion was voted in the affirmative. 

Counting of the ballots began at 8:00 p.m. and the results of the balloting were 

read by the Moderator at 11:00 p.m. 

Attest: Lois E. Marshall, Clerk 

Results of Non-Partisan Balloting for Town Officers. Total registered voters 

— 2,497; 639 regular ballots cast, 60 absentee ballots cast for a total of 699 votes 

cast. 

No. of Votes 

For Selectman (for three years) Vote for One 

HaroldsW.-Bukeér] etic 0.0 ee atee: ae Soha ee aap Dak 646 

Sydneya Crooks. aif oh. tewe cad etapa linee ee. atnegdtame 1 

Michael Joiorenzo i pepots-s it. be tek era en Lane coms ie 1 

Hugh‘ Keating .... all: sagas tod bee hee ed ie eee 1 

PaukkEmehani “attw. &0 £2. foe Sa. Sa08 aes. mee seal 1 

Nancy. Muller (oe. is on wae es tl) aoe eet ee y. 

William: Kiddér Jt ei ae ec eee 2 

VOM HansS@niv. ccc ros sie foe aie Oe tee 2 

Read "Clarke vs tu. . coe turn ce oe re ene ee te 1 

Ralph’ Marshalle ris acc on ce cou eee ee teat tent ee 2 

Charles“Mortensenitvc. . tt. cee ce ote nee tens ee ae iI 

Woody Blunt(Harry)os 52.2 soa) octets ee cert ae 3 

John*Peterson: «i. tise sea 2 Toes 4ie erie: Roi ae 1 

For Moderator (for two years) Vote for One 

Hilary ‘P.; ClEVelanG' 0. ace. cette ce ts Cette at ne eee ee 684 

Par Ward. 5 csc cnssc sual co i eke eee ete ete ete ee 1 

For Budget Committee (for three years) Vote for Three 

William, F< Kiddenslt. watt . cs tice). sett. £6. cree oe A. 533 

Douglas. G. Atkins. ."..”. Gites tie. dla cts oe ee ee 426 

William Tv Andrews 2246424 gst oe ve ot eee eee ee bs. 

Charles: M:. Johnson <. ..3'2. «2.43 ee ee 182 

Witham, J. Lynch soci. he: teva ES Ole lh ere ee ee oe 136 | 
Robert..B.;Problit ei aco iin os es ee le ee 135 

David Ay Okmai..o.3 cs. lia) 1 eR ee ee ee 102 

Colin: Campbell 30... od 0s. 2 ee ee ee a 

Jeff: Hollinger sis. eek oe Oe eee 1 



For Fire Chief (for one year) Vote for One 

[Psd ied tS eythe 5210) Ce alate og aa ako apm me Hatt aonb epee nica dal 637 

Hees) UR (e lg TESS: peer tet d dae lis be eb pt chet hele erry” ae eae ipa, Moma pian 

ARMAS AIC fe teenie te Pe ee ee eee eed) ee eer ee ee oe 

TLC Wis Oe ee oe es, ne ae eye ae ee 

SECIS) nr ere en ee ee ere re ee ee ae eee 

MTN DeLee ey, See ees oem, ee ee an eee pee, am eu 

SUSE OMAN ets Ss Oe ee ee ee ea ee ee 

PPUMVTC SSCL ere le ee ne see a eee. ee ee ee 

Lougpivlathewsontnnih. ae eave | Ree CR Pe cae:: 

REPEC JONES oie sn oe e eee eke eich te ae a eS} 2 

For Trustee of Trust Funds (for three years) Vote for One 

PCR ICIN ROT ACV orotate reiterate et arin «stint creinee ge crate waren 652 

AMIMIAITeA LTC Wedel ent toro eat eet ie te eee hk tater 

date Buck inews-.of. acest i eR Ria I 2 REAM re Dees 

For Sewer Commissioner (for three years) Vote for One 

Le tn APCTTOTTATI EVES? 66,1 3 agi, Me ER oe ane r r CE ihel 630 

HOUNPAVINLCTR RSF etake All. mote ALS RNAS Stale iid teec tele EO TaE al. oh ei Rede ee 

|B lie Fae MISTS TP RVESESS 5 6 AUP eR Baa ol SP ete ee an Nh SE 

Almaneardslevs cncn nevk cst: lara. oot y owes «A ART eee 

BENeBarlon oan set ies. ods Putter sees (eae cd che dee) Seer ace 

Wilhame leeLynChisacurdiccte) as nomic sage at Apa eent neds 3 

Sumner Woodward: sch sect. portent! .aauion Jgwetud eae. 

RObSibal Ohia:. Sie dhe duatswrnet id oe Aan deeteuw wy ft eae ee 

ae ae at fants. the: theres chested’ chews weeds eres 

ftemeVicGormicks tiv. toast eel ban aunetivdaw od Oe the eee. 

Shagless Varstonsseiisenn steak dort. wh mee a. Se 2 ee 

Poe SOUS Hct oetetenys Te pen a ies cud sacs haan d tenho ge exit ne an ne 

For Cemetery Commissioner (for three years) Vote for One 

Rare NAC WICK SLLGINGLEme ert eee cc: Pent etre aire 670 

RALGHEROOS tits Soc wee, oilt.ot chestthndml. no.aeeaa x 

Ri@onevelt. 22.2 se.) ms fend, @ Dore tomes), Die 2 ai, eee ke 

DER eT IMeTICCISON: thus. atoricc! See Gh Grae es ite Pa eso oe 

Ditrclastteeisa xterm, Meme REA 3 ys ce cee A Sia eines Kosta ale aia You 

For Supervisor of the Checklist (for six years) Vote for One 

1 PBA FER 1 Mek 9 td P29 wri gy le dei ane eee ae A aD 665 

Vie CE WTS watt stn sella via calle arian a adie iene ir ike arabes dif ri 



Martha Benz. aiszaestictial cig exes poe eae en ee ee 1 

Garol Fraley 5, v3) << ste, >, cnt 9 sates Retain Geechee fed rae 1 

For Library Trustee (for three years) Vote for Two 

Ann’M. Linehan 4-4 48 22 oe. Re a 267 

Robert "Ty sWallate’s'S. G3 Fee CDN es 15 en a 230 

SusaiiS Tn witt sts tes Beds ers ore nies ah es ep, cay 183 

Sancha Garvey ‘isc. 2a ke cath = ais ac 151 

KathleensA,.Carroll 3 adic ee 2 ae ee 102 

JohnyA< Canton sais she casa ougacy ee ihete weaneciuatec se neue Sorel ale ea ae 

Laura, Grabann seis Siig ee es sae Ses eae 47 

Louise’ Mann 232 Pee aS OS, Se ee 1 

Jack Walshe 2% a ker, Tae OSS Siscn alin pce Bee oe 1 

Virginia FOOSE 665.3561 see eee ve dade eta t Whee ene Oe 1 

William’ P: Cooper: &: ices kg eee site See ee 1 

Tomie de Paola 2 ee. Pei PO A. Pe ee 1 

For Kearsarge School District Board (Term Ending 1993) Vote for One 

Erle: Gy -Blanchard i453 <u0s ona cen. cee hee eee 593 

Emily.Campbell saspiics tessa: Sotto Slee nna scold a ae ee 7 

GOAT AOC hapigs Ses as ct vcs Soa Sarg ae acu harvest ls tenance aa ee 3 

Patil hime ann: 3. sages seen estaeeasy ya! ogee bores tea otto Ree nee ee 2 

One Vote Each for the Following Individuals: 

Thomas McCormick Janet Kidder Nancy Kocsis 

Brian J. Prescott Peggy Stock Robert Fraley 

Patsy Powers Wes Nichols Jim Clancy 

Howard Becker Hugh Keating Cathy Bianchi 

Lois Shaw Hilary Cleveland Anne Paige Stecker 

Robert B. Prohl Virginia Cooper Cindy Lamy 

Lisa Lull Charles Marston Ann Linehan 

For Kearsarge Regional School District Moderator (for one year) Vote for One 

Brackett. schetty so... a<aias uo k so he oe ean ae 636 

Hilary: Cleveland. as 19.55 3 veka aise ata ed ities ae 5 

AtkJacobson UG 2) Weare): ORR BSE AP ies cn et cae 4 

Bob BowerS 064: 244 +06 dau gas sss cd ge alee dala ote ee 2 

BP Waldo sSanidersy x 6.0) 3ic::4 sa 0 <w-nw srea ys eee a ae eae 1 

Edward, Jobs gens cde d conetia sence sce eae ee eee 1 

Deborah Brescotty, «. d44.<elcissssks 2 Geese «eae ange 1 

Ballot Results on Amendments to the New London Zoning Ordinance. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 1 as proposed by the Plan- 

ning Board for the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 1: 
AMEND ARTICLE II - 10. SIGN REGULATION, PARAGRAPH b. TO READ: 

Signs shall be permitted no larger than four (4) square feet in the Residential 
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Districts, the Conservation District, the Agricultural and Rural Residential 

District, and for residential uses in the Institutional Districts; and fifteen (15) 

square feet in the Commercial District and the Institutional Districts except 

as noted above. No signs shall be placed in such a position as to endanger 

traffic on a street by obscuring a clear view or by confusion with official street 

signs or signals. Every sign permitted hereunder shall be constructed of durable 

materials and shall be maintained in good condition and repair at all times. 

AS ARTICLE II - 10. SIGN REGULATION, PARAGRAPH b. IS PRESENT- 
LY WRITTEN: 

Signs shall be permitted no larger than four (4) square feet in the Residential 

Districts, the Conservation District, and the Agricultural and Rural Residen- 

tial District; and fifteen (15) square feet in the Commercial District and the 

Institutional Districts. No signs shall be placed in such a position as to en- 

danger traffic on a street by obscuring a clear view or by confusion with official 

signs or signals. Every sign permitted hereunder shall be constructed of durable 

materials and shall be maintained in good condition and repair at all times. 

YES — 604 NO — 52 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 1 will restrict signs for 

residential uses in the Institutional Districts to four (4) square feet in lieu of 

the fifteen square-foot size currently permitted. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 2 as proposed by the Plan- 

ning Board for the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 2: 
AMEND ARTICLE III — DEFINITIONS BY ADDING A DEFINITION OF 
ABUTTER TO READ: 

Abutter means any person whose property adjoins, is directly across the street 

or stream, or is within two hundred feet (200’) of the land under considera- 

tion by the Planning Board or Zoning Board of Adjustment including any per- 

son whose property meets these criteria and is located in a neighboring 

municipality. For the purposes of receiving testimony only, and not for the pur- 

pose of notification, the term abutter shall include any person who is able to 

demonstrate that his land will be directly affected by the proposal under con- 

sideration. For purposes of receipt of notification by a municipality of a local 

land use board hearing, in the case of an abutting property being under a con- 

dominium or other collective form of ownership, the term abutter means the 

officers of the collective or association, as defined in RSA 356-B:3, XXIII. 

YES — 605 NO — 34 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 2 will add a definition 

of abutter for both the Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment to use 

for notification of public hearings. 
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Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 3 as proposed by the Plan- 

ning Board for the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 3: 
AMEND ARTICLE II] — DEFINITIONS BY AMENDING THE DEFINI- 
TION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY TO READ: 

Right-of-way means and includes all town, state and federal highways and rights- 

of-way public or private and the land on either side of same as covered by the 

Statutes to determine the widths of the right-of-way. (See Land Subdivision 

Control Regulations, Section VI-M:5.) 

AS ARTICLE III — DEFINITIONS, RIGHT-OF-WAY IS PRESENTLY 
WRITTEN: 

Right-of-way means and includes all town, state and federal highways, and public 

body of water, rights-of-way public or private and the land on either side of 

same as covered by the Statutes to determine the widths of the right-of-way. 

(See Land Subdivision Control Regulations, Section VI-M:5.) 

YES — 579 NO — 61 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 3 will remove public body 

of water from the definition of right-of-way and limit rights-of-way to roads and 

rights-of-way either public or private. This will preclude new lots from having 

frontage only on a public body of water with no road frontage. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 4 as proposed by the Plan- 

ning Board for the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 4 
AMEND ARTICLE VII — COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, SECTION B. LAND 
REQUIREMENTS, PARAGRAPH 1. TO READ: 

1. There shall be between the nearest right-of-way and the extreme front 

of any building a yard having a minimum depth of thirty (30) feet; but said 

minimum depth may be less than thirty (30) feet if in conformity with the 

yards of adjoining lots. No building shall be located within ten (10) feet of 

the side or rear property line. The frontage shall not be less than the width 

of the land required for the structure thereof. 

AS ARTICLE VII — COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, SECTION B. LAND RE- 
QUIREMENTS, PARAGRAPH 1. IS PRESENTLY WRITTEN: 

1. There shall be between the nearest right-of-way and the extreme front 

of any building a yard having a minimum depth of thirty (30) feet; but said 

minimum depth may be less than thirty (30) feet if in conformity with the 

yards of adjoining lots. No building shall be located within ten (10) feet of 

the side or rear property line. The frontage on designated commercial 

streets shall not be less than the width of the land required for the struc- 
ture thereof. ; 

YES — 595 NO — 40 
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RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 4 will delete the reference 

to frontage on designated commercial streets since those designations were 

removed from the Zoning Ordinance several years ago. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 5 as proposed by the Plan- 

ning Board for the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 5: 

AMEND ARTICLE XXI — STEEP SLOPE OVERLAY DISTRICT, SEC- 
TION B. OVERLAY DISTRICT BOUNDARIES TO READ: 

B. OVERLAY DISTRICT BOUNDARIES: The boundaries of the Steep Slope 

Overlay District include all areas of New London with slopes in excess 

of 25 percent with an elevation change of more than twenty (20) feet. The 

Slope of the natural terrain shall be determinative of whether or not land 

is within the overlay district. As a general guide, areas of steep slope in 

excess of 25 percent are portrayed on the December 1986 STEEP SLOPES 

MAP prepared by the Upper Valley-Lake Sunapee Council. 

AS ARTICLE XXI — STEEP SLOPE OVERLAY DISTRICT, SECTION B. 

OVERLAY DISTRICT IS PRESENTLY WRITTEN: 

B. OVERLAY DISTRICT BOUNDARIES: The boundaries of the Steep Slope 

Overlay District include all areas of New London with slopes in excess 

of 25 percent. The slope of the natural terrain shall be determinative of 

whether or not land is within the overlay district. As a general guide, areas 

of steep slope in excess of 25 percent are portrayed on the December 

1986 STEEP SLOPES MAP prepared by the Upper Valley-Lake Sunapee 

Council. 

YES — 563 NO — 57 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 5 will amend the boun- 

daries of the Steep Slope Overlay District to include those areas with slopes 

in excess of 25 percent which have an elevation change of at least 20 feet. 

Requiring a minimum elevation change of 20 feet will make the boundaries 

of this overlay district more reasonable by eliminating relatively minor changes 

in the topography from the provisions of this district. 

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 6 as proposed by the Plan- 

ning Board for the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 6: 

AMEND ARTICLE XIV — ENFORCEMENT, SECTION A., PARAGRAPH 

6 TO READ: 

6. Upon conviction thereof, every person, firm or corporation violating any 

of the provisions of this ordinance shall be fined not more than one hun- 

dred dollars ($100) for each day such violation existed after official notifica- 

tion by the Selectmen or their agent. 
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AS ARTICLE XIV — ENFORCEMENT, SECTION A., PARAGRAPH 6 IS 
PRESENTLY WRITTEN: 

6. Upon conviction thereof, every person, firm or corporation violating any 

of the provisions of this ordinance shall be fined not more than ten ($10) 

dollars for each day such violation may exist. 

YES — 541 NO — 92 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 6 will change the fine 

for violating the Zoning Ordinance from $10 to $100 for each day the violation 

exists to be consistent with the amount permitted by state statute. 

Are you in favor of Amendment No. 7 as proposed by the Planning Board for 

the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 7: 

AMEND ARTICLE VII — CONSERVATION DISTRICT, INTRODUCTORY 
STATEMENT TO READ: 

The purpose of this district is to provide for the conservation of significant 

amounts of open space for visual and recreational enjoyment. These are areas 

in the community not served by adequate facilities and utilities, of subsoil con- 

ditions that cause problems in development of the land and should be conserved 

because of their scenic values, wildlife habitat, type of vegetation and/or unique 

geographical features. Conservation of these areas will assist in keeping New 

London an attractive, rural community and allow for adequate open space. 

AS ARTICLE VIII — CONSERVATION DISTRICT, INTRODUCTORY 
STATEMENT IS PRESENTLY WRITTEN: 

This district allows for open space and conservation. These are areas in the 

community unserviced by adequate facilities and utilities, of subsoil conditions 

that cause problems in development of the community and should be conserved 

because of their scenic values in order to obtain the community’s goal of keeping 

New London an attractive community allowing adequate open space. A max- 

imum density permitted is one family in ten (10) acres. 

YES — 572 NO — 48 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 7 will revise the introduc- 

tory statement for the Conservation District to more accurately reflect the 

goals of this district. Additionally, the density standard is proposed to be re- 

moved from this introductory statement and inserted in the Land Requirements 

section as proposed in Amendment No. 8 to follow. 

Are you in favor of Amendment No. 8 as proposed by the Planning Board for 

the New London Zoning Ordinance? 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 8: 

AMEND ARTICLE VIII — CONSERVATION DISTRICT, SECTION C. 

LAKESHORE FRONTAGE TO READ: 

C. Land Requirements 
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1. Within the Conservation District, the minimum lot size shall be ten 

~ (10) acres. 

2. Any building lot within the Conservation District shall have a minimum 

of two hundred (200) feet of continuous road frontage. 

3. A lot having lakeshore frontage on a public body of water shall have 

frontage on the lake of not less than three hundred (300) feet. 

4. The maximum population density shall be one (1) family per ten (10) 

acres. 

AS ARTICLE VUI — CONSERVATION DISTRICT, SECTION C. 
LAKESHORE FRONTAGE IS PRESENTLY WRITTEN: 

C. Lakeshore Frontage 

A lot having lakeshore frontage on a public body of water shall have front- 

age on the lake of not less than three hundred (300) feet. 

YES — 497 NO — 127 

RATIONALE: The Planning Board’s Amendment No. 8 will amend the Con- 

servation District requirements by adding a minimum lot size of ten acres and 

by adding a minimum road frontage requirement of two hundred feet. Addi- 

tionally, the density standard of one family per ten acres currently in the in- 

troduction statement for the district will be inserted in this section. 

CONTINUATION OF TOWN MEETING — MARCH 14, 1990 

KEARSARGE MIDDLE SCHOOL AT 7:00 P.M. 

Moderator Hilary P. Cleveland at 7:05 p.m. recognized Richard Biddle who 

represented the NH/VT Solid Waste Project. New London received the first an- 

nual award recognizing it in 1989 as the municipal with Outstanding Recycling 

at a Transfer Station. Also recognized was Fred Welch as an innovator, a marketer, 

a motivator, and an accurate record keeper, as well as the Transfer Station staff 

of Robert Lee, Catherine Peirce, and Karen Welch. 

The Moderator formally reconvened the meeting at 7:15 p.m. and read the 

results of the balloting which took place on March 13, 1990. 

Moderator Cleveland recognized Harold Buker who made a motion to have 

the Meeting take Article 5 out of order as the next item of business. 

ARTICLE 5: It was moved and seconded, ““To see if the Town will vote to sus- 

pend the reading of the individual Articles of the Warrant and to refer to them 

by number.’ 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 2: It was moved and seconded, ““To see if the Town will vote to raise 

and appropriate the sum of $1,285,300 for the purpose of preparing plans and 

specifications and constructing an addition to the Tracy Memorial Library, such 

sum to include the purchase of original equipment, that the sum of $916,405 be 

raised by the issuance of serial bonds or notes not to exceed $916,405 for a period 

not to exceed 15 years under and in compliance with the provisions of the 
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Municipal Finance Act (New Hampshire RSA 33:1 etc., as amended); and to 

authorize the Selectmen to issue and negotiate such bonds or notes and to deter- 

mine the rate of interest thereon; and further to authorize the Board of Select- 

men and the Board of Library Trustees to apply for, contract for, accept, and 

expend any Federal, State or other available funds towards the project, accord- 

ing to the terms under which they were received, and to borrow in anticipation 

of the receipt of such aid or issuance of such bonds or notes, by the issuance 

of bonds or notes in anticipation of such bonds, notes or aid as provided by the 

Municipal Finance Act, as amended; provided that any interest received or available 

may likewise be applied to the project to the maximum extent permitted by law; 

the balance of $368,895 to be made available from donations for renovations, ad- 

ditions, and improvements to the Tracy Memorial Library currently being held 

by the Board of Library Trustees; and to authorize the Board of Selectmen and 

the Board of Library Trustees to take all other actions necessary to carry out 

the project in the best interests of the Town of New London.’ 

(2/3rds vote by Ballot) 

RESULTS OF THE VOTE ON ARTICLE 2 

— 487 BALLOTS CAST (2/3rds=325 votes) 

YES — 405 NO — 82 

ARTICLE 3: It was moved and seconded, ““To see if the Town will vote to raise 

and appropriate the sum of $1,005,500, and to authorize the Board of Sewer Com- 

missioners to expend said sum for the purpose of constructing sanitary sewer 

lines in the Birch and Seamans Acres areas of New London, said sum to include 

the purchase of land and easements, and to authorize the issuance of serial bonds 

or notes to fund said appropriation in a sum not to exceed $1,005,500 for a period 

not to exceed 15 years under and in compliance with the provisions of the 

Municipal Finance Act (New Hampshire RSA 33:1 etc, as amended); and to 

authorize the Board of Selectmen to issue and negotiate such bonds or notes 

and to determine the rate of interest thereon; and further to authorize the Board 

of Selectmen to apply for, accept, and expend any Federal, State or other available 

funds towards the project, according to the terms under which they are received 

and to borrow in anticipation of the receipt of such aid or the issuance of such 

bonds or notes, by the issuance of bonds or notes in anticipation of such bonds, 

notes or aid as provided by the Municipal Finance Act, as amended; provided 

that any interest received or available may likewise be applied to the project to 

the maximum extent permitted by law; and further notwithstanding that the bonds 

or notes shall be a general obligation of the Town, the Board of Sewer Commis- 

sloners are hereby directed to establish assessments sufficient to pay 90% of 

all costs due to the construction of such sanitary sewer lines against those served 

or receiving a benefit from the lines to be constructed hereunder; and to authorize 

the Board of Selectmen and Board of Sewer Commissioners to take all other 

actions as may be necessary to carry out the project in the best interest of the 

Town of New London.’ 

(2/3rds vote by Ballot) 
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Moderator Hilary Cleveland recognized Lloyd Littlefield who made a motion 

to amend Article 3 by changing the Town’s share to read $607,226 rather than 

$100,550. Motion was seconded. 

VOTE IN THE NEGATIVE ON THE AMENDMENT 

RESULTS OF THE VOTE ON ARTICLE 3 
— 421 BALLOTS CAST (2/3rds=281) 

YES — 102 NO — 319 

ARTICLE 4: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to raise 

and appropriate the sum of $71,500; said sum to be transferred from the pro- 

ceeds to the closed sewer bond construction account in accordance with the pro- 

visions of RSA 33:3-a, said sum to be used to fund additions and improvements 

to New London’s portion of the Sunapee Sewage Treatment Plant and to authorize 

the Board of Sewer Commissioners to expend said funds for said purpose and 

following completion of the work to return any unused funds and/or interest to 

the town without further vote to reduce the original Bond.’’ (2/3rds vote required) 

RESULTS OF THE VOTE ON ARTICLE 4 

— 266 BALLOTS CAST (2/3rds=178) 

YES — 260 NO — 6 

ARTICLE 6: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to raise 

and appropriate the following sums for the ensuing year to defray Town charges.’’ 

1989 1990 

Town Officers’ Salaries $ 9,500 9,500 

Town Officers’ Expenses 192 ,600 212 ,736 

Town Buildings 49 270 49,830 

Election & Registration 1,550 2,400 

Social Security & Retirement 63,485 75,200 

Insurance 174,825 235,454 

Planning Board/Zoning Board 25,000 27,250 

Local Welfare 1,000 2,100 

Upper Valley Lake Sunapee Council 2,618 2,618 

Street Lighting 17,250 17,500 

$508,272 $634,588 

($1.43 per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 7: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise 

and appropriate the sum of $5,000 for the maintenance and updating of Tax Maps.”’ 

(01 cent per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 8: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise 

and appropriate the sum of $4,500 for revaluation pick-up work on Town 

assessments.’ 

(01 cent per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 
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ARTICLE 9. It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to raise 

and appropriate the following amount for the maintenance and upkeep of the public 

cemeteries.’ 

1989 1990 

Cemetery Commission $ 8,300 $ 8,300 

(02 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 10: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the following amounts for the Highway Department.’ 

1989 1990 

Highway General Maintenance $ 18,100 $ 11,100 

Town Maintenance 302,015 306,184 

$320,115 $317,284 

(71 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 11: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $20,000 for the maintenance, construction, and 

reconstruction of sidewalks.’ (04 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 12: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

authorize the Board of Selectmen to spend Highway Block Grant Funds estimated 

to be in the amount of $58,072 for the maintenance, construction, and reconstruc- 

tion of Class V Highways.’ 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 13: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the following sums for Highway Department Capital Outlay.’ 

35000 GVW Dump Truck with plows and radio $ 48,500 

Loader 14,800 

63,300 

(14 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 14: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $38,000 to replace the Great Brook Bridge at 

Pleasant Street and Lake Shore Drive.’’ 

(09 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 15: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

discontinue a portion of Old Otterville Road from the northern boundary of In- 

terstate 89 to its southerly meeting with Burnt Hill Road in accordance with RSA 

25435 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 
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ARTICLE 16: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

direct the Board of Selectmen to post Forest Acres Road for ‘‘No Through Truck- 
ing’ Fe ’ 

(BY PETITION) 
VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 17: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the following sums for public safety departments.’ 

1989 1990 

Police Department $175,211 176,495 

Dispatch 101,900 107,546 
Fire Department 51,860 55,235 

Emergency Management 1,750 1,750 

$330,721 $341,026 

(77 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 18: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $16,000 for the purchase of a police cruiser for 

the Police Department.’ (04 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 19: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $35,000 to replace and update the Town’s 

emergency base radio system.’ (08 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 20: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000 to be added to the established Capital 

Reserve fund for a Fire vehicle.’’ (07 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 21: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $5,500 for the replacement of (6) six portable 

radios for the Fire Department.’ (01 cent per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 22: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the following amounts for culture and recreation.’ 

1989 1990 

Library $ 99,225 $109,945 

Recreation 23,818 24,967 

Conservation Commission 10,000 10,000 

Information Booth 3,000 3,000 

History and Archives 900 750 

$136,543 $148,662 

(33 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 
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ARTICLE 23: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘Shall we adopt the provisions of 

RSA 72:28, V and VI for an optional Veterans’ exemption and an expanded quali- 

fying war service for veterans seeking the exemption? The optional veterans’ 

exemption is $100,000, rather than $50.00.’’ (BY PETITION) 
(Vote by Ballot) 

(04 cents per thousand) 

RESULTS OF THE VOTE ON ARTICLE 23 — 256 BALLOTS CAST 

YES — 250 NO — 6 

ARTICLE 24: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the following amount for damages and legal expenses.’ 

1989 1990 

Damages & Legal Expenses $100,300 $ 50,300 
(11 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 25: It was moved and seconded, ““To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the following amounts for Solid Waste Disposal.’ 

1989 1990 

Sullivan County Regional Disposal District $205,860 226,140 

Solid Waste Disposal and Recycling 147,716 141,425 

$353,576 367,565 

(82 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 26: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $215,000 to be added to the established Capital 

Reserve Fund for sanitary landfill and stump dump closures.’ 

(48 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 27: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the town will vote to 

direct the Board of Selectmen to adopt an Ordinance requiring mandatory non- 

residential resource recovery for wastes generated within the Town and deliveries 

to the Town by commercial haulers or businesses, and to amend the same without 

further submissions to a Town Meeting, as provided in RSA 149M:13, II.’ 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 28: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

designate and proclaim April 22, 1990, as Earth Day 1990, and to set aside that 

day for public activities promoting preservation of the global environment and 

launching the ‘‘Decade of the Environment.’ (BY PETITION) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 29: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $8,000 for the Care of Trees.’’ 

(02 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 
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ARTICLE 30: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the following sums.’’ 

1989 1990 

Health Department $ 3,000 ute WAS 

New London Hospital 12,500 0 

New London Ambulance 10,120 10,525 

Lake Sunapee Home Health 8,755 8,755 

Community Action Program Ci? 1,845 

$ 36,132 $ 24,350 

(05 cents per thousand) 

Moderator Cleveland recognized John Woodward who made a motion to amend 

Article 30, 1990 New London Hospital figure from 0 to 12,500, thereby changing 

the total to read $36,850. The motion was seconded. 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE OF THE AMENDMENT 

Moderator Cleveland then recognized Edward Olney who made a motion to 

amend Article 30, 1990 Lake Sunapee Home Health figure from $8,755 to $10,464, 

thereby bringing the total to read $38,559. The motion was seconded. 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE OF THE AMENDMENT 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE ON AMENDED ARTICLE 

ARTICLE 31: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the following sums for the payment of Bonded Debt, Prin- 

cipal, and Interest:’’ 

1989 1990 

Principal $203,320 $122 484 

Interest 65,651 62,020 

$268,971 $184,809 

(42 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 32: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $10,000 to pay for interest on temporary loans 

during the year.’ (02 cents per thousand) 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 33: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

raise and appropriate the sum of $304,015 for sewer maintenance.’ 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 34: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

rescind the bonding authority granted under Article 1 of the Special Town Meeting 

of October 30, 1985, said Article having granted $75,000 of Bonded Debt for sewer 

purposes to replace pumps at Georges Mills, said funds having not been bor- 

rowed but taken from available funds.’ 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

Oe 



ARTICLE 35: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘As citizens of New Hampshire 

assembled at our Town Meeting and concerned over the present and future well- 

_ being of our Town, State, Nation, and World, we call on our representatives in 

Washington to work vigorously for substantial reductions in military spending — 

spending for which the taxpayers of our Town paid approximately $5,400,000 last 

year — and to redirect our federal tax dollars toward such purposes as educa- 

tion, environmental protection, deficit reduction, farming housing, health care, 

and welfare of the elderly and children.’ (BY PETITION) 

A request from more than seven people for a ballot vote was made and re- 

quest granted by Moderator Cleveland. 

RESULTS OF THE BALLOT VOTE ON ARTICLE 35 — 142 BALLOTS CAST 

YES — 80 NO — 62 

ARTICLE 36: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

authorize the Board of Selectmen to apply for, receive and expend Federal and 

State Grants which may become available during the course of the year, and also, 

to accept and expend money from any other governmental unit or private source 

to be used for purposes for which the Town may legally appropriate money 

provided: 

1. that such grants and other monies do not require the expenditure of other 

Town funds; 

2. that a Public Hearing shall be held by the Selectmen prior to the receipt 

and expenditure of such grants or money; 

3. that such items shall be exempt from all provisions of RSA 32 relative to 

limitation and expenditure of Town monies, all as provided by RSA 31:95b.’’ 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 37: It was moved and seconded, ‘“To see if the Town will vote to 

authorize the Board of Selectmen and the Town Treasurer to incur debts from 

time to time during the 1990 fiscal year to an aggregate amount not exceeding 

the 1989 tax levy, for temporary loans in anticipation of 1990 taxes, and to issue 

notes of the Town therefore, and to refund the same, all as provided in the 

Municipal Finance Act; the Selectmen and Treasurer to be authorized to sell such 

notes.’’ 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 

ARTICLE 38: It was moved and seconded, ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to 

authorize the Board of Selectmen to transfer tax liens and convey property ac- 

quired by the Town of New London by the Tax Collector’s Deed, by public auc- 

tion or advertised sealed bid or in such manner as detemined by the Board of 

Selectmen as justice may require, in accordance with RSA 80:42.”’ 

VOTE IN THE AFFIRMATIVE 
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Retired Chief of Police, Ralph E. Marshall, was presented with a Certificate 

of Appreciation for his 20 years of dedicated service to his fellow citizens as a 

Police Officer and Chief of Police of the Town of New London. Mr. Marshall re- 

ceived a standing ovation. 

There being no further business, Moderator Hilary P. Cleveland adjourned the 

Meeting at 11:00 p.m. 

LOIS E. MARSHALL 

Town Clerk 

A True Copy Attest: LOIS E. MARSHALL 

Town Clerk 
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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

NEW LONDON, N.H. 

TOWN WARRANT 

To the inhabitants of the Town of New London in the County of Merrimack, 

in said State, qualified to vote in Town affairs: 

(Ly) 

You are hereby notified to meet at the Whipple Memorial Hall in said New Lon- 

don on Tuesday, the twelfth day of March next at 10:00 o’clock to act upon the 

following subjects: 

ARTICLE 1: A. To choose all necessary Town Officers for the ensuing year. 

B. To vote by ballot on amendment to the New London Zon- 

ing Ordinance. 

Note: By law, the meeting must open before the voting starts. Therefore, the 

meeting and polls will open at 10:00 o’clock for the consideration of Article 1, 

parts A and B. 

At 12:00 noon the Meeting will recess, but the polls will remain open until 7:00 

p.m. The meeting will reconvene at the Kearsarge Middle School Gymnasium 

on Wednesday, March 13, 1991, at 7:00 p.m., to act upon Articles 2 through 30. 

ARTICLE 2: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to suspend the reading of the in- 

dividual Articles of the Warrant and to refer to them by number.’ 

ARTICLE 3: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing sums for the ensuing year to defray Town charges.’ 

1990 1991 

Town Officers’ Salaries $ 9,500 $ 9,500 

Town Officers’ Expenses 212,736 232,756 

Town Buildings 49,830 46,680 

Election and Registration 2,400 1,550 

Social Security and Retirement 75,200 88,150 

Insurance 235,454 272 462 

Planning Board/Zoning Board 27,250 26; 220 

Local Welfare 2,100 10,000 

Upper Valley-Lake Sunapee Council 2,618 2,618 

Street Lighting 17,500 18,375 

$634,588 $708,316 
($1.57 per thousand) 

ARTICLE 4: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $6,000 for the maintenance and updating of tax maps.’’ 

(1 cent per thousand) 
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ARTICLE 5: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $5,000 for revaluation pick-up work on Town assessments.’ 

(1 cent per thousand) 

ARTICLE 6: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to con- 

struct and re-erect a directional sign, at Town expense, of the same size and 

height of the sign which was removed, on town property, at the four corners, 

on the southwesterly corner of the intersection of South Pleasant Street, and 

Main Street in close proximity to where the previous sign had stood for more 

than 20 years, and to grant Louise Todd a license for use of said sign.’’ 

(BY PETITION) 

ARTICLE 7: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing amount for the maintenance and upkeep of the public cemeteries.’ 

1990 1991 

Cemetery Commission $ 8,300 $ 7,800 

(1 cent per thousand) 

ARTICLE 8: “‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing amounts for the Highway Department.’ 

1990 1991 

Highway General Maintenance $ 11,100 $ 10,677 

Town Maintenance 306,184 314,154 

$317,284 $324,831 

(72 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 9: “‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing sums for Highway Department Capital Outlay.’ 

35000 GW Dump Truck with Plow $ 50,000 

Sander 10,500 

Flail Mower 8,000 

$ 68,500 

(15 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 10: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Select- 

men to spend Highway Block Grant funds estimated to be in the amount of $58,685 

for the maintenance, construction, and reconstruction of Class V Highways.’ 
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ARTICLE 11: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing sums for public safety departments.’ 
1990 1991 

Police Department $176,495 $197,085 

Dispatch 107,546 110,077 

Fire Department eer a ta) 56,475 

Emergency Management 1,750 1,750 

$341,026 $365,387 

(81 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 12: “‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $16,000 for the purchase of a Police Cruiser for the Police Department.’’ 

(3 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 13: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $29,200 for a police dispatch recording system.’’ (6 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 14: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $3,200 for the purchase of fire arms for the Police Department.’ 

(007 cents per thousand) 

NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE 

ARTICLE 15: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $30,000 to be added to the Established Capital Reserve for a Fire vehicle.’’ 

(6 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 16: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $3,000 for fire hose for the Fire Department.”’ 

(006 cent per thousand) 

ARTICLE 17: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing amounts for culture and recreation.’ 

1990 1991 

Library $109,945 $120,298 

Recreation 24,967 25,940 

Conservation Commission 10,000 10,000 

Information Booth 3,000 3,000 

History and Archives 750 750 

$148,662 $159,988 

(35 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 18: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing amount for damages and legal expense.”’ 

1990 1991 
Damages and Legal Expense $ 50,300 $ 35,300 

(7 cents per thousand) 
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ARTICLE 19: ‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing amounts for Solid Waste Disposal.’’ 

1990 1991 
Sullivan County Regional Disposal District $226,140 $234,570 

Solid Waste Disposal and Recycling 141,425 133,434 

$367,565 $368,004 

(81 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 20: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $215,000 to be added to the Established Capital Reserve Fund for the closure 

of landfills, and all associated costs.’’ (47 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 21: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $8,000 for the Care of Trees.’’ (1 cent per thousand) 

ARTICLE 22: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing sums.’ 

1990 1991 

Health Department Se tapas $ 3,550 

New London Hospital 12,500 12,500 

New London Ambulance 10,525 13,172 

Lake Sunapee Home Health 10,464 10,996 

Community Action Program 1,845 1,937 

$ 38,559 $ 42,155 

(9 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 23: “‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the follow- 

ing sums for the payment of bonded debt, principal and interest.’ 

1990 1991 

Principal $122 484 $176,659 

Interest b2-520 105,666 

$184,809 $282,325 

(62 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 24: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $1,000 to pay for interest on temporary loans during the year.’ 

(002 cents per thousand) 

ARTICLE 25: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of $312,803 for sewer maintenance.’ 

ARTICLE 26: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to RSA 35, to establish 

a capital reserve fund of $120,000 for the purpose of treatments to Kezar Lake.’’ 

(26 cents per thousand) 
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ARTICLE 27: ‘‘To see if the Town shall appoint the Board of Selectmen, as 

agents of the Town, as prescribed in RSA 35:15, to expend the Capital Reserve 

Fund established for the purpose of treatment to Kezar Lake, in the amount of 

$120,000 plus any accrued interest.’’ 

ARTICLE 28: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Select- 

men to apply for, receive and expend Federal, and State Grants which may become 

available during the course of the year, and also, to accept and expend money 

from any other governmental unit or private source to be used for purposes for 

which the Town may legally appropriate money provided: 

1. that such grants or other monies do not require the expenditure of 

other town funds, 

2.that a public hearing shall be held by the Selectmen prior to the 

receipt or expenditure of such grants or money, 

3. that such items shall be exempt from all provisions of RSA 32 relative 

to limitation and expenditure of Town monies, all as prescribed by RSA 

OL 9obie 

ARTICLE 29: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Select- 

men and the Town Treasurer to incur debts from time to time during the 1991 

fiscal year to an aggregate amount not exceeding the 1990 tax levy, for temporary 

loans in anticipation of 1991 taxes, and to issue notes of the Town therefore, and 

to refund the same, all as provided in the Municipal Finance Act; the Selectmen 

and the Treasurer to be authorized to sell such notes.’’ 

ARTICLE 30: ‘‘To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Select- 

men to transfer tax liens and convey property acquired by the Town of New Lon- 

don by Tax Collector’s Deed, by public auction, or advertised sealed bid or in 

such manner as determined by the Board of Selectmen as justice may require, 

in accordance with RSA 80:42.”’ 

Given under our hands and seal this thirteenth day of February, in the Year of 

our Lord nineteen hundred and ninety-one. 

JAMES W. MORELAND 

Chairman 

R. PETER BIANCHI 

HAROLD BUKER, JR. 

Selectmen of New London 

A true Copy of Warrant — Attest: 

JAMES W. MORELAND 

Chairman 

R. PETER BIANCHI 

HAROLD BUKER, JR. 

Selectmen of New London 
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1990 APPROPRIATIONS, CREDITS AND TAX RATES 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

Town Officers’ Salaries 

Town Officer’s Expenses 
Election & Registration 

Cemeteries 

General Government Buildings 
Reappraisal of Property 
Planning & Zoning 
Legal Expenses 
Advertising and Regional Assoc. 

Tax Maps 

PUBLIC SAFETY 

Police Department 
Fire Department 

Civil Defense 
Police Dispatch 

HIGHWAYS, STREETS, BRIDGES 

Town Maintenance 

General Highway Department Expenses 
Street lighting 
Sidewalks 
Highway Block Grant 
Care of Trees 

SANITATION 

Solid Waste Disposal 
Solid Waste District 

HEALTH 

Health Department 
Hospitals & Ambulances 
Lake Sunapee Health Care 
Community Action 

Al 

176,495. 
55,235. 
1,750. 

107,546. 

306,184. 
11,100. 
17,500. 
20,000. 
58,072. 
8,000. 

226,140. 
141,425. 

ike eee 
235025 
10,464. 
1,845. 



WELFARE 

General Assistance 

CULTURE & RECREATION 

Library 
Parks & Recreation 

Conservation Commission 

Information Booth 

History & Archives 

DEBT SERVICE 

Principal of long-term bonds & notes 
Interest Expense-long term bonds & notes 
Interest Expense-Tax anticipation notes 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

35000 GVW Dump Truck 
Loader 
Great Brook Bridge 
Police Cruiser 

Emergency Radios 
Fire Radios 
Library addition 

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 

Fire Vehicles 

Landfill Closures 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Municipal Sewer Department 
FICA, Retirement & Pension Contributions 

Insurance 

Library building funds 
Sewer construction 

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 
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2,100. 

109,945. 
24,967. 
10,000. 
3,000. 

FAOR 

122,484. 
62,325. 
10,000. 

30,000. 
215,000. 

304,015. 
75,200. 

235,454. 
368,895. 
71,500. 

4,260,280. 

00 



Less Estimated Revenues and Credits 

TAXES 

Yield Taxes 

Interest & Penalties on Taxes 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES - STATE 

Shared Revenue Block Grant 

Highway Block Grant 
State Aid Water Pollution Projects 
Trust Funds 

Cemetery Trust funds 
Court fines 

Flood 
Retirement reimbursement 

INTERGOVERMENTAL REVENUES - FEDERAL 

Sewer Department 

Flood 

LICENSES & PERMITS 

Motor Vehicle Permit Fees 

Dog Licenses 
Business Licenses, Permits & Filing Fees 
Franchise Fee CATV 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

Income from Departments 
Rental of Town Property 
Police Dispatch 

Health Officers’ Fees 
Alarm Contracts 
Recycling Income 
Refunds 

43 

400. 
35,000. 

47,666. 
58,072. 
118,675. 

1,800. 
5,000. 
3,600. 
3,961. 

11,700. 

14,537 
16,587. 

315,000. 
1,860. 
9,800. 
8,436. 

- 00 
00 



MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 

Interest on Deposits 

Sale of Town Property 
Cemetery Lots 

Insurance Dividends 

Insurance Reimbursements 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

Proceeds of Bonds, and long term notes 
Income from Sewer Department 
Sewer Construction 

Library Building Funds 
Fund Balance 

TOTAL REVENUES AND CREDITS 

Total Town Appropriations + 

Total Revenues and Credits 
Net Town Appropriations = 

Net School Tax Assessments + 
County Tax Assessment + 

TOTAL OF TOWN, SCHOOL AND COUNTY = 

76,000.00 
9,304.00 
2,/00.00 
18,647.00 
41,500.00 

916,405.00 
304,015.00 
71,500.00 

368,895.00 
113,274.00 

2,658,941.00 

4,260,280.00 
2,658,941.00 
1 601 7339.00 
2,920,011.00 

731,707.00 
5, 2935 ;027 400 

DEDUCT Total Business Profits Tax Reimbursement 89,608.00 

ADD War Service Credits + 

ADD Overlay + 
PROPERTY TAXES TO BE RAISED = 

37,700.00 
67,466.00 

5,268,615.00 

Tax Rate approved by Dept. of Revenue Administration 
$11.87 per $1,000.00 Assessed 

Municipal 
County 

School 

TOTAL 

Proof of Tax Rate Computation 

Valuation of New London = $443,859, 765 
$443,859,765 divide by 1,000 x 11.87 

44 
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TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31, 1990 

ASSETS 

Cash on Hand 

Conservation Commission 

Prepaid Interest on Sewer Bond 

ACCOUNTS DUE TOWN 

1991 Property taxes 

Unredeemed Taxes 

Accounts Receivable 

Sewer Rents 

Capital Reserve Accounts 

Landfill Closure 

Mee. prick 

LIABILITIES 

i602 7627. 

Ce ca he 

Wis ays) bo re 

450,994. 

93 wi.Le8 

Lyiek 6 

the ake ly 

PLS 200". 

As gs islet 

Unexpended Conservation Commission Funds 

School District Tax Payable 

Bills Outstanding 

Unexpended Balances of Special Appropriations 

Capital Reserve Funds 

Unreserved Fund Balance 

Uncollected Sewer Rents 

45 

ee oe ee 

Soon UOr, 

341,398. 

ese Pa ailsvahs 

Ain 3G. 

bs eu aifehe hs 

Cuno aie 

5339926R 

24145398" 

420,602. 

eae 

Miaoye Vesa Oye ee 

(Ae) 
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TOWN TREASURER’S REPORT 

Regular Checking Account 

Cash on hand January 1, 1990 

Amounts received from January 1, 

to December 31, 1990 

Amounts paid out from January 1, 

to December 31, 1990 

Cash on hand, December 31, 1990 

Regular Sewer Account 

Cash on hand January 1, 1990 

Amounts received from January 1, 

to December 31, 1990 

Amounts paid out from January 1, 

to December 31, 1990 

Cash on hand, December 31, 1990 

Sewer Construction Account 

Cash on hand January 1, 1990 

Amounts received from January 1, 

to December 31, 1990 

Amounts paid out from January 1, 

to December 31, 1990 

Cash on hand, December 31, 1990 

Sewer Replacement & Improvements 

Cash on hand January 1, 1990 

Amounts received from January 1. 

to December 31, 1990 

Amounts paid out from January 1, 

to December 31, 1990 

Cash on hand, December 31, 1990 

46 

1990 

1990 

1,0U0, 325. 

6,747,476. 

Ligmal pow Te 

16,006. 

297,984. 

220,9a/. 

if PSL: 

20,000. 

79,248. 

8,347,801 

8,347,801 

313,990. 

313,990. 

243,739. 

243. 739" 

99,248. 

99,248. 

.64 

.64 

95 

95 

65 

65 

78 

78 



Sunapee Sewer Improvements 

Cash on hand January 1, 1990 28463 .47 
Amounts received from January 1, 1990 

to December 31, 1990 146.04 

2509: 

Amounts paid out from January 1, 1990 
to December 31, 1990 2,009.21 

Account closed December 31, 1990 0.00 

and transferred to Regular Account -------------- 

2,509. 

Sewer Escrow Account 

Cash on hand January 1, 1990 eR ah 

Amounts received from January 1, 1990 

to December 31, 1990 65.85 

1,228. 

Amounts paid out from January 1, 1990 
to December 31, 1990 ecu 

Cash on hand, December 31, 1990 0.00 

Account closed December 19, 1990 = -------------- 

1,228. 

Conservation Commission Account 

Cash on hand January i, 1990 60,951.16 

Amounts received from January 1, 1990 

Including Town Appropriation 10,579.25 

At, 520.. 

Amounts paid out 0.00 

Cash on hand, December 31, 1990 71,530.41 

71,5385 

47 



TREASURER’S FAREWELL 

After eighteen years as your Town Treasurer, I decided it 
was time to pass this year’s election. The position has 
increased in the volume of transactions along with the 
increase in population. I should like to mention some 
highlights which have greatly improved your Town’s 
efficiency and the performance of your Town officials. 

In 1985, New London hired Fred Welch to serve as 

Administrative Assistant to the Board of Selectmen. This 
event coincided with the construction of the addition to 
the Town Hall, which Fred oversaw to its conclusion in 

1986. For the first time the New London Town Offices 
were consolidated in one place. Today our Tax Collector, 
Lois Marshall, and the Deputy Collector, Grace Granger as 
well as Jill Lynch and April Whittaker, who handle the 
Town accounting and secretarial duties on behalf of the 
Selectmen, together with Fred Welch, see to the efficient 
administration of New London’s business. Fred Welch also 
oversaw the construction and operation of our very 
successful Recycling Center. 

The Selectmen are very busy people in their own fields, 
and do not have the time for the endless demands of 
running our town, which is the reason for having Fred 
Welch on board to assist the Selectmen. New London is 
indeed fortunate to have such a loyal and hard working 
staff. 

I have enjoyed being your Treasurer. It is time to pass 
the reins on to another. 

To quote philospher John Heywood, who said in the year 
1546 "A hard beginning maketh a good ending". 

Respectfully Submitted, 

February 12, 1991 Benjamin L. Bucklin 
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COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES 

Fiscal Year Ending December 1990 

Title of Revenue 1990 Estimate 1990 Received 
mee ee me ee ee ee se ae a 

Yield Taxes 400.00 173.03 

Interest & Penalties on Taxes 35,000.00 38,479.65 

Land Use Change Taxes 0.00 0.00 

Shared Revenue Block Grant 47 ,666.00 Tai else 

HIghway Block Grant SO,ure cu 58,071.88 

State Aid Water Pollution Control 118,675.00 1167675.00 

Trust Funds 1,800.00 Lvda7..ad 

Cemetary Trust Funds §,000.00 5,000.00 

State, Court Fines 3,600.00 4,419.00 

Flood Aid Funds (Federal & State) 20,548.00 20,548.00 

Motor Vehicle Fees 315,000.00 319,433.00 

Dog Licenses 1,860.00 a BS ge be 

Business Licenses, Permits & Filing Fees 9,800.00 10,050.95 

Franchise Fee 8,436.00 8,435.69 

Income From Departments 35,000.00 32,939.92 

Rent of Town Property 11,900.00 Tete oO 

Police Dispatch 22,500.00 24,700.00 

Health Officers Fees 750.00 768.00 

Alarm Contracts 3,180.00 3,180.00 

Recycling Income 6,500.00 Jerk ie wack 

Interest on Deposits 76,000.00 LUG; 20 34 

Sales of Town Property 9,304.00 9,765.90 

Insurance Dividends 18,647.00 18,646.61 

Insurance Claims 0.00 SiteTo.ol 

Insurance Reimbursements 41,500.00 633475. 16 

Retirement Reimbursements 11,700.00 Be aes i ay ee 

Sewer Department 14,537 00 25,493.76 

Refunds qo rrr uu GS Ulgwue 

Sewer Warrant Article PL, oeeeue 71,500.00 

Income From Sewer Department 304,015.00 304,015.00 

Surplus 113 274700 Ptaver a. u 

Library Building Funds 368,895 .00 558,070.00 

Proceeds of Bonds 916,405.00 799,230.00 
ee ee ee ee ee eae ee 

TOTAL 2,696,247 U0=S2,ge., 073504 

ol 



TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1990 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

Town Officer’s Salaries 9,500.00 

Town Officer’s Expenses 205,857.46 

Election & Registration 2,348.64 

Town Hall & Other Buildings 35,654.86 

Property Appraisal SD aun woe 

Tax Map Revisions 7,022.00 

Planning Board 26,198.49 

Zoning Board of Appeals 1966-55 

Damages & Legal Expenses 345138, 51 325.983; 

PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

Police Department 16%, 219. a0 

Dispatch 109,738.04 

Fire Department 53,441.43 

Care of Trees reo Alia Wd 

Insurance 237,764.46 

Emergency Mangement 1,634.40 592,166. 

HEALTH 

Health Department 2,904.18 

New London Hospital Association 12,500.00 

Ambulance Service 10,525.00 

Lake Sunapee Home Health Care 10,463.75 

Town Transfer Station & Recycling 1224070.61 

Sewer Maintenance (Salaries) 63,080.54 221,544. 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 

Road Maintenance 26/7,;6h1.60 

Block Grant 58,072.00 

General Expenses 9,968.64 

Sidewalks 19, 224,02 

Street Lighting 175 00a. od 392,545. 

CULTURE & RECREATION 
Library (includes salaries) 191,434.45 

Parks & Beaches 24,0707 50 

Conservation Commission 10,000.00 

History & Archives 400.91 226,413. 

WELFARE 

Local Assistance 4,369.84 

Community Action 1,845.00 6,214; 

PUBLIC SERVICE ENTERPRISES 

Cemetery 8, 137453 

Information Booth 3,000.00 DW las ee 

52 
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84 
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UNCLASSIFIED 

Taxes Bought by Town 

Tax Refunds 

Retirement & FICA 

Dues for Disposal District 

Lake Sunapee Council 

DEBT SERVICE 

Interest on Long Term Notes 

Principal on Long Term Debt 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Police Cruiser 

35000 GVW Dump Truck 

Bobcat Loader 

Police Radios 

Replace Radios-Fire Dept 

PAYMENTS TO OTHER GOV’T DIVISIONS 

County Taxes 

NL-Spgfd Water System Precinct 

Goose Hole Sewer 

New London Sewer Commission 

State of New Hampshire 

Kearsarge Regional School District 

Trustees of the Trust Fund 

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Great Brook Bridge Replacement 

Tracy Library Addition 

Sunapee Sewer Treatment Plant 

Encumbered 1989 

TOTAL PAYMENTS 

Cash on Hand, January 1, 1990 

a 

109,562, 

28,108. 

70,500. 

143,953. 

2,618. 

15,861. 

43,002. 

EAS PE 

a5, 20U., 

5,000. 

BPRS 

354,742. 

Waren Uk yee 

se ee the p 

4,176,860. 

1 eye ag Ler oe 

$8,179,024. 

DP OUe oer. 

$9,781,651. 

85 
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TOWN OF NEW LONDON 

SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS 

DECEMBER 31, 1990 

BY TAXATION: 

Prior Year Property Tax 

Interest 

Tax Sales Redeemed 

1990 Property Tax 

Interest 

Over Payments 

Yield Tax 

FROM STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

State Revenue Sharing Block Grant 

State Court Fines 

Sewer Bond 

Flood Aid (Federal & State) 

Highway Block Grant 

FROM LOCAL SOURCES, EXCEPT TAXES 

Dog Licenses 

Business Permits & Fees 

Rent of Town Property 

Sale/Lease of Town Property 

Interest on Deposits 

Income from Trusts 

Dispatch Department 

Refunds from Library (Payroll) 

Refunds from Sewer (Payroll) 

Miscellaneous Refunds & Gifts 

Recycling Income 

Miscellaneous Income - Departments 

Franchise Fees 

Health Officer’s Fees 

Registration of Motor Vehicles 

Alarm Contracts 

Insurance Claims 

Insurance Dividends 

Insurance Reimbursements 

Retirement Reimbursements 

Cemetary Trust Funds 

Sewer Bond/Principle & Interest 

Sale of Cemetery Plots 

Payments Due State 

Library Building Funds 

Proceeds From Bond 

Sewer Warrant Article 

Sewer Rents 

TOTAL RECEIPTS 

Cash on Hand, January 1, 1989 

o4 

356,045. 

4,830. 

SW dare ge 

4,419. 

116.675: 

20,548. 

98.50 71. 

1 ois. 

10,050. 

) BE & fx IS 

9,765. 

109,158. 

1 =e 
24,750. 

88,676. 

BE ay fe i 

6,015. 

Fig Tbe 

32,939. 
8,435. 

768. 
319,433. 

3,180. 
Ligecu. 
18,646. 

43,475. 
Loig257% 

5,000. 
ons 49.3. 

3,500. 

1,443. 

558,070. 
793,,230;. 

71,500. 

266,138. 

00 
88 

467,931.57 

4,844,766.24 

338,987.90 

2,529,640.65 

$8,181,326.36 

1,600,325.28 

$9,781,651.64 



DEPARTMENTAL EXPENSES 

TOWN OFFICERS’ SALARIES 

Appropriation 9,500.00 

Paid: 

Board of Selectman 6,000.00 

Town Treasurer 1,200.00 

Deputy Treasurer 50.00 

Sewer Commissioners 2,100.00 

Welfare Officer 150.00 

TOTAL 9,500.00 

Balance 0.00 

TOWN OFFICER’S EXPENSE 

Appropriation 212,736.00 

Paid: 

Board of Selectman 

Selectman’s Travel 496.99 

Salaries 78,268.03 

General Expenses 4,902.65 

Telephone 3,479.09 

Postage 4,619.60 

Dues 734.00 

Conferences 898.95 

NHMA Dues 1,686.68 

Registry of Deeds 380.05 

Town Report 6,448.34 

Printing 534.04 

Stationary 145.00 

Advertising 2,003.14 

Computer Expense 6,000.00 

Maintenance Equipment 7,260638 

Trust Fund Account 500.00 

Gasoline/Diesel 29,520.39 

Subscriptions 398.00 

Town Auditor 7,000.00 

Extra Hire 2,440.50 

Treasurer’s Expense 139.00 

Town Clerk 

Salaries 24935628 

Conferences 607.00 

Supplies 3ig732 

Stationary 32.74 

Tax Collector 

Salaries 22;99309.20 

Conferences 597.78 

Registry of Deeds 240.00 

Supplies 341.23 

59 



TOTAL 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 

Unexpended Balance 

Transferred to Appraisals, Tax Maps, 

Planning Board and insurance 

Balance 

ELECTIONS & REGISTRATIONS 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Supervisor’s Salary 415.15 

Moderator’s Salary 80.00 

Ballot Clerks 240.00 

Counters 205.00 

Supplies eSUco. 

Ads 574.30 

Ballots/Printing 583.88 

TOTAL 

Unexpended Balance 

Transferred to Insurance Expense 

Balance 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT BUILDING 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Town Hall 

Cleaning Services 9,000.00 

Electricity 6,743.64 

Heating Fuels 3,901¢93 

Building Maintenance 2,661.61 

Water/Sewer 535.90 

Supplies Leis 437? 

Equipment 2 pt2se2S 

Elkins Post Office 

Expenses P95 2¢76 

Hydrant Service 

Expense 7,085.00 

Town Hall 

Additional Renovations 596.98 

TOTAL 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 

Unexpended Balance 

Transferred to Insurance, Street Lighting, 

and Local Welfare 

Balance 

56 

205,657. 

. 90 

9,096. 

| a 8 

5,096. 
0. 

2400. 

49,830. 

46 

64 

64 

00 

00 

. 36 

. 36 

. 86 

.07 

.07 

.07 

.00 



RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY 

Appropriation 75,200 

Paid: 

NH Employee Retirement 10,462.99 

NH Police Retirement B,203.-39 

Social Security 50,/03./> 

TOTAL 70,500 

Unexpended Balance 4,699 

Transferred to Insurance, Local Welfare, 4,699 

and Police Department 

Balance 0 

PLANNING BOARD 

Appropriation 24,950. 

Paid: 

Printing 395.15 

Supplies 993.59 

Ads 438.00 

Registry of Deeds 608.40 

Secretarial 2,739.00 

Conferences 60.00 

Planner 20,964.35 

TOTAL 26,198 

Overdraft 1,248. 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 279. 

Transferred from Town Officers Expence a ae 

Balance 0 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 

Appropriation 2,300. 

Paid: 

Ads 4735525 

Supplies 141.30 

Secretarial 1,350.00 

TOTAL 1,966. 

Balance oo. 

Encubered for unpaid Obliqations ci. 

Transferred to Police Department 255 

Balance 0. 

DAMAGES & LEGAL EXPENSES 

Appropriation 50,300. 

Paid: 

Legal Expenses S15 725.61 

Damages 143.00 

Dogs 270.00 

o7 

. 00 

eke 

. 87 

. 87 

.00 

00 

.49 

49 

00 

49 

.00 

00 

55 

45 

50 

Bp 

00 

00 



TOTAL 32,190. 

Balance ps ae ey 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 1,969. 

Transferred to Police Dispatch and oul t Oe 

Police Department 

Unexpended Balance 12, 414¢ 

INSURANCE 

Appropriations Lon Ads 

Paid: 

Blue Cross 116, TCE. 29 

Life/Disability §,865, 12 

Public Officals 2,399.00 

Police Liability 11,000.00 

Special Multi Peril 32,431.00 

Automobile 14,016.00 

Workmen’s Comp Sl,cro.ue 

Bonds 1,343.00 

Unemployment 300.00 

TOTAL 237,764. 

Overdraft aeaeue 

Transferred from Town Officers Expense, 

Elections & Registrations and Town Buildings 2, 3106 

Balance 0. 

CEMETERIES 

Appropriation 8,300. 

Paid: 

Salaries 5,000.00 

Supplies 1,654.67 

Equipment 1,482.86 

TOTAL Bite 

Unexpended Balance 162. 

GENERAL HIGHWAY 

Appropriation ye at 

Paid: 

Telephone 676.83 

Electricity 1,173.69 

Heating Fuels 4,616.81 

Building Maintenance A Gif eos 
Supplies 1,283.78 

TOTAL 9,968 

Balance Ma ec 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 50 

Unexpended Balance 1,081 

58 

00 

46 

46 

46 

00 

00 

saat 

47 

.00 

.64 

. 36 

sau 

. 26 



HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Salaries 

Overtime 

Extra Hire 

TOTAL 

Balance 

Equipment Maintenance 

Equipment Hire 

Gravel 

Sand 

Salt 

Cold Patch 

Asphalt 

Tires 

Supplies 

Signs 

Street Paint 

Lubrication Supply 

Culverts 

Street Sweeping 

Guard Rails 

Radios 

Tools Maintenance 

Protective Clothing 

Calicum Chloride 

Paving 

102,774. 

i74i52- 
6,964. 

24,382. 

6,063. 

17,934. 

10,589. 
9,159 
1,526. 

Ser ts: 
5,296. 
2,637. 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 

Unexpended Balance 

RECYCLING & DISPOSAL FACILITIES 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Personnel Services 

Salaries 

Overtime 

Transfer Haul Facility 

Transportation 

Maintenance Equipment 

Signs 

Supplies 

Utilities 

Recycling 

Supplies 

Expense 

Printing 

Bale Ties 

Recycling Storage 

59 

54,312 

6,316. 

13,682. 

4,797. 

SEE 

JG 

20 

1,063 

6, i2i 

40. 

1,023. 
(i oe 

1, Cale 
1, 1208 

74 

00 

94 

00 

ae 

97 

71 

00 

69 

00 

316,184 

Zo? 077 

28,506 

oe OAS: 

22,330 

141,425 

.00 

.63 

.37 

.70 

oF 

. 00 



Recycling Transportation pokes a RS ema | 

General 

Metal Disposal 4,000.00 

Hazardous Waste Day 118.20 

Monitoring Wells 23202300 

TOTAL 122,070.61 

Balance Lo, J0avoe 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 4,746.66 

Unexpended Balance 14,607.73 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Appropriation 1/6, 026).7¢ 

Salaries bP tees bet bss 

Patrolman’s Overtime 15,956.14 

Holiday Pay 4,146.86 

Part Time Officers 14,435.77 

Uniforms 6,916.82 

Equipment To £0058 46 

Dues 170.00 

Radio Repair 1,095.69 

Supplies 2,283.89 

Telephone 4,806.93 

Cruiser Maintenance 6,993.75 

Training Expense 5,939.97 

Law Publications 1,351.44 

Computer Use Fee 2,069.40 

Service Contracts 2,453.66 

Office Expense 556.20 

Special Equipment 100.00 

Public Education 485.34 

Medical Expenses 340.69 

TOTAL 181,716.58 

Overdraft 3,689.86 

Transferred from Social Security & Retirement 3,689.86 

Balance 0.00 

60 



POLICE DISPATCH 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Salaries 

Overtime 

Part Time Workers 

Shift Differential 

Training 

Holiday Pay 

Supplies 

Equipment 

Uniforms 

TOTAL 

Overdraft 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 

Transfered from Damages & Legal Expenses 

Social Security & Retirement & ZBA Expenses 

Balance 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Salaries 

Telephone 

Public Service 

Supplies/Tools 

New Equipment 

Equipment Maintenance 

Building Maintenance 

Sewer/Water 

Dues 

Fuel 

Replacement Equipment 

Protective Clothing 

Radios 

Uniforms 

Training 

TOTAL 

Balance 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 

Unexpended Balance 

EMERGENCY MANGEMENT 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Director’s Salary 

Equipment Maintenance 

61 

300.00 

288.50 

17 2540. 

109,738. 
04 
42 

fuive 

21 

Ggeag 

95,235. 

03,7405 

1,493. 

Leone 

237s 

Le7OC 

00 

04 

. 46 

0. 00 

00 

33 

67 

60 

07 

00 



New Equipment 

Supplies/Expenses 

Radio Maintenance 

Generator Maintenance 

TOTAL 

Unexpended Balance 

RECREATION COMMISSION 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Salaries 

Equipment Maintenance 

Supplies 

Telephone 

Ads 

Water/Plumbing/Electricit 

New Equipment 

TOTAL 

Unexpended Balance 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Health Officer’s Salary 

Testing 

Expenses 

TOTAL 

Unexpended Balance 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Police Cruiser 

35000 GVW Dump Truck 

Bobcat Loader 

Police Radios 

Replace Radios-Fire Dept 

TOTAL 

Unexpended Balance 

62 

1,634. 

1134 

24,967. 

3,225. 

119,800. 

40 

60 

00 

-50 

.90 

00 

aoe a 

00 

-82 
ee 



PROPERTY APPRAISALS 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 2, c7Gu0e 

TOTAL 

Overdraft 

Transferred from Town Officer’s Expense 

Balance 

TAX MAPS 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 7,022.00 

TOTAL 

Overdraft 

Transferred from Town Officer’s Expense 

Balance 

STREET LIGHTING 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 17,602.63 

TOTAL 

Overdraft 

Transferred From Town Buildings 

Balance 

LOCAL WELFARE 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 4,369.84 

TOTAL 

Overdraft 

Transferred From Town Buildings and 

Social Security & Retirement 

Balance 

SIDEWALKS 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 19,224.83 

TOTAL 

Unexpended Balance 

63 

4,500. 

5,000. 

17,500. 

2,100. 

20,000. 

00 

aw 
Ae 
ie 
.00 

00 

.00 

.00 

. 00 

.00 

00 

.63 

.63 

‘S23 
.00 

00 

. 84 

. 84 

. 84 

.00 

00 

. 83 

aa 4 



HIGHWAY BLOCK GRANT 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses D0,ULo.U0 

TOTAL 

Balance 

CARE OF TREES 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses EET A hem ag 

TOTAL 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 

Balance 

56,072. 

8,000. 

00 

. 00 

.00 

00 

og Ts 

.00 

Wee: 

SULLIVAN COUNTY REGIONAL REFUSE DIPOSAL DISTRICT 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 1a3, 373.10 

TOTAL 
Balance 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 

Unexpended Balance 

HISTORY & ARCHIVES 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 400.91 

TOTAL 

Balance 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 

Unexpended Balance 

BONDED DEBT 

Appropriation 
Paid: 

Expenses 122,428.80 

TOTAL 

Unexpended Balance 

64 

226,140. 

143,953. 
82,186. 

10,792. 

71,393. 

750. 

122,484 

122,428. 
.20 55 

00 

16 

84 

90 

94 

00 

“o2 

.09 

.00 

.09 

.00 

80 



INTEREST 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 54,668.60 

TOTAL 

Unexpended Balance 

GREAT BROOK BRIDGE 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 37,930.00 

TOTAL 

Unexpended Balance 

TRACY LIBRARY ADDITION 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 1,285,300.00 

TOTAL 

Balance 

SUNAPEE SEWER TREATMENT PLANT 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses fin 500800 

TOTAL 

Balance 

1989 ENCUMBERED FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 

Appropriation 

Paid: 

Expenses 186,496.56 

TOTAL 

Balance 

Encumbered for unpaid obligations 

Unexpended Balance 

65 

Lib g SLO: 

54,668. 

17,696; 

38,000. 

37 ole 

rail 

1 40>, 300. 

Ly, 205,300. 

0. 

71,500. 

728,906. 

186,496. 

542,409. 

Qe. 0a0e 

rap Eee a 

00 

60 

40 

00 

00 

00 

00 

00 

00 

00 

.00 

. 00 

06 

56 

50 

02 
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APPROPRIATIONS PAID IN ENTIRETY TO ONE ENTITY 

Tracy Memorial Library 

Conservation Commission 

Chamber of Commerce/Information Booth 

New London Hospital 

New London Ambulance 

Lake Sunapee Home Health Care 

Community Action Program 

Upper Valley Lake Sunapee Council 

Capital Reserve Funds 

TOTAL 

NON-APPROPRIATED PAYMENTS 

Taxes Bought by Town 

Merrimack County Taxes 

Water System Precinct 

Tax Refunds 

Payments to State 

Trustees - Cemetery Plots 

NLSC-Goose Hole Sewer Bond Proceeds 

Sewer Rents 

TOTAL 

KEARSARGE REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Assessment 

July 1 1989-June 30, 

Assessment 

July yi 

1990 (Balance due) 

1990-June 30, 1991 

TOTAL 

Paid 

Treasurer Kearsarge Regional School 

Balance Due for year ending June 30, 1991 

TOTAL 

66 

109,945. 

10,000. 
3,000. 

12,900. 
LO Vse5R 

109° 56a, 

FOL,f Ul 

45,836. 

28,108. 

1,509. 

3,500. 
72,000. 

266,136. 

405,896. 

1,258,362. 

1,074,247. 

2,920,011. 

3,994,258. 

2,811,169. 

1, 163,089; 

3,994,258. 

is 

94 

oe 
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SCHEDULE OF TOWN PROPERTY 

Description 

Town Hall, Land and Buildings 

Furniture/Equipment 

Library, Land & Buildings 

Furniture/Equipment/Books 

Police Department, Equipment 

Dispatch Service, Equipment 

Fire Department, Land & Buildings 

Equipment 

Highway Department, Land & Buildings 

Equipment 

Recycling & Disposal, Land & Buildings 

Equipment 

Bucklin Beach, Land & Buildings 

Elkins Beach, Land & Buildings 

Beach Equipment 

Sewer Commission, Land/Build./Pump Stns. 

Colby Sanctuary, Conservation Land 

Conservation Land off I-89 

Conservation Land off I-89 

Phillips Memorial Preserve 

Stump Dump 

Land, Little Sunapee Road 

Land, Otterville Road 

Island, Pleasant Lake 

Philbrick/Cricenti Bog 

Conservation Land/Lakeside Road 

Land, Pleasant Street 

Post Office & Bathhouse 

Land, Elkins Road 

Land/Building, Pleasant Lake Dam 

Tannery Pond, Elkins Road 

Scytheville Park Dam, Elkins Rd. 

Scytheville Park Ext., Elkins Rd. 

Scytheville Park 

Scythe Shop Pond, Elkins Rd. 

Backland off So. Pleasant St. 

Little Common, Main Street 

Sargent Common, Main Street 

Cemetery Well, Elkins Road 

Elkins Cemetery, Elkins Road 

Land off Laurel Lane 

Conservation Land, County Road 

69 

Map/Lot No. Acres 

85-14 
85-38 
84-52 

84-64 

84-21/95-20 

96-1 4.8 

33-11 88 
77-10 

95-21 

12-1 33 
16-2 4.2 

16-1 4.5 
29-4 70.9 

33-19 6.7 
33-22 lif 
42-19 1 

50-18 00 
08-5A 36.16 
72-21 5.6 

74-37 60 
771-8 

77-10 a0 
77-12 A 
77-23B A2 
77-5A 05 
1-5 .96 

77-5B 09 
77-5C a 

83-9 lis}, 
84-14 1.0 

85-13 3.8 

87-5 .03 
88-5 6.0 
89-1 30.6 
93-6 20.03 

Value 

783,900 
04,800 

369,600 

150,000 
39,582 

29,000 
385,900 
225,427 

361,200 
201275 

304,800 
122,000 
292 ,800 

393,400 
0,480 

1,438,000 
162,900 

48,200 

13,500 
304,800 

67,500 
43,600 

39,400 

37,100 
187,800 
197,400 

37,600 

393,400 
160,100 

224,200 

41,000 
6,100 

12,600 

7,000 
10,000 

75,000 
140,600 

368,500 

17,100 
241,200 
167,400 
97,300 



Cemetery Land, Bog Road 

Conservation, Wilder Lane 

Conservation, Wilder Lane 

Conservation Land, Mountain Rd. 

Mountain Road 

Mountain Road 

Sanitary Landfill, Mountain Rd. 

Land & Building, Mountain Rd. 

Cemetery, Old Main Street 

Shaker Pit, Mountain Rd. 

Conservation Land, Mountain Rd. 

Conservation Land, Wilder Lane 

Cemetery, County Rd. 

Emergency Management Equipment 

Conservation Commission Equipment 

Tree Dept. Equipment 

TOTAL 

70 

107-4 

112-1 

112-2 

112-6 
117-12A 2.6 

93,600 
61,600 
57,700 

169,800 
47,900 
97,700 
76,400 
91,100 
56,100 

240,800 
163,400 
87,400 
48,100 
2,289 

212 
390 

$9,508,951 



REPORT OF THE TOWN CLERK 

For Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 1990 

ISSUE OF DOG LICENSES: 

2 Kennel Licenses 

443 Dog Licenses 

Dog Fines 

Payments due State on Dog Licenses 

PAYMENTS TO TREASURER 

AUTO REGISTRATIONS: 
Issue of Auto Permits 

Title Fees 

Decal Fees 
Overpayments 

PAYMENTS TO TREASURER 

ALL OTHER FEES: 
Filing Fees 
24 Town Histories ($10 each.) 
68 Historical Sketches ($1 each) 

118 Footpath Maps (50¢ each) 
Marriage Licenses 

Payments due State on Marriage Licenses 
Overpayment to State on Marriage License 
Uniform Commercial Code Filings 
18 Dredge and Fill Applications 

Pole Licenses 
Non-sufficient Fund Check Charges 
Miscellaneous 
Certified Copies: 
175 Birth Certificates 
763 Death Certificates 
29 Marriage Certificates 
10 Proof of Residency 

PAYMENTS TO TREASURER 

TOTAL RECEIPTS: 
TOTAL PAID TO TREASURER: 

39.00 

1,770.45 

110.00 

222.50 

318,135.00 
1,298.00 

10,792.00 
25.00 

35.00 
240.00 
68.00 
59.00 

219.00 
1,188.00 

33.00 
3,016.25 

36.00 
5.00 

60.00 
6.65 

525.00 
2;290:25 

87.00 
30.00 

$340,290.10 

Respectfully submitted, 

LOIS E. MARSHALL 
Town Clerk 

$ 2,141.95 

330,250.00 

7,898.15 

$340,290.10 



TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1990 

arly @) 2 pce 

Uncollected Taxes - 

Beginning of Fiscal Year 

Property Taxes 

Land Use Change Tax 

Yield Taxes 

Sewer Rents 

Taxes Committed to Collector: 

Property Taxes 

Land Use Change Tax 

Yield Taxes 

Sewer Rents 

Prepayment on 1989 2nd billing 

billing paid in 1989 

Added Taxes: 

Property Taxes 

Sewer Rents 

Overpayments: 

a/c Property Taxes 

a/c Sewer Rents 

Interest Collected on 

Delinquent Taxes: 

Property 

Sewer 

TOTAL DEBITS 

ECR 

Remittances to Treasurer 

During Fiscal Year: 

Property Taxes 

Land Use Change Tax 

Yield Taxes 

Sewer Rents 

Interest Collected on Delinquent Taxes: 

Property 

Sewer 

Abatements: 

Property Taxes 

Sewer Rents 

Uncollected Taxes End of Fiscal Year: 

Property Taxes 

Land Use Change Tax 

Yield Taxes 

Sewer Rents 

TOTAL CREDITS 

— Levies Of: — 

1990 1989 

$ 357,040.89 

00.00 

00.00 

6,917.97 

5,296, 147.18 00.00 

00.00 00.00 

173.03 00.00 

153,405.00 127,968.00 

(241.26) 

2,748.50 3,861.54 

00.00 00.00 

1,902.90 14.80 

198.00 53.60 

4,830.60 22,308.76 

43.50 1,405.79 

$5,459,448.71 $ 519,330.09 

$4,845,515.12 $ 359,921.94 

00.00 00.00 

173.03 00.00 

129,793.28 134,698.31 

4,830.60 22,308.76 

43.50 1,405.79 

4,288.81 995.29 

10,226.70 00.00 

450,994.65 00.00 

00.00 00.00 

00.00 00.00 

13,583.02 00.00 

$5,459,448.71 $ 519,330.09 



SUMMARY OF TAX LIEN ACCOUNTS 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1990 

inh P|? ems 

—Tax Lien on Account of Levies of— 

Balance of Unredeemed Taxes- 

Beginning Fiscal Year* 

Taxes Executed to Town During 

Fiscal Year** 

Subsequent Taxes Paid 

Interest Collected After 

Lien Execution 

Redemption Costs 

TOTAL DEBITS 

CR 

Remittances to Treasurer During Year: 

Redemptions 

Interest & Costs After Lien 

Abatements During Year 

Deeded to Town During Year 

Unredeemed Taxes End of Year 

Unredeemed Subsequent Taxes 

Unremitted Cash 

TOTAL CREDITS 

1989 

$109,563.52 

00.00 

1,139.03 

163.50 

$110,866.05 

$ 41,358.48 

1,302.53 

118.86 

00.00 

68,086.18 

00.00 

00.00 

$110,866.05 

1988 

$ 49,119.67 

00.00 

00.00 

4,788.58 

189.90 

$ 54,098.15 

$ 22,894.56 

4,978.48 

998.04 

00.00 

29,227.07 

00.00 

00.00 

$ 54,098.15 

1987 

$ 13,983.88 

00.00 

00.00 

4,912.73 

146.55 

$ 19,043.16 

$ 13,983.88 
5,059.28 

00.00 

00.00 

00.00 

00.00 

00.00 

$ 19,043.16 

* These sums represent the total of Unredeemed Taxes, as of January 1, 1990, from Tax Liens 

held in Previous Fiscal Years. 

** Amount of Tax Lien held during current fiscal year, including total amount of taxes, interest 

and costs to date of lien. 

73 



SUMMARY OF SEWER RENTS 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1990 

Levy of 1989 - First Billing 

Balance Due Uncollected Taxes $ 6,917.97 

Sewer Rents Collected 6,917.97 

Interest Collected 768.82 

Levy of 1989 - Second Billing 

—DR— 

RENTS COMMITTED TO COLLECTOR: 

Sewer Warrant $127,968.00 

Prepayment Collected in 1989 (241.26) 

Interest Collected 636.97 

Overpayments 53.60 

TOTAL DEBITS $128,417.31 

Say Gj * pe 

REMITTANCES TO TREASURER: 

Sewer Rents Collected $127,780.34 

Interest Collected 636.97 

Uncollected Rents 00.00 

TOTAL CREDITS $128,417.31 

Levy of 1990 - First Billing 

HR 

RENTS COMMITTED TO TREASURER: 

Sewer Warrant $153,405.00 

Interest Collected 43.50 

Overpayments 198.00 

TOTAL DEBITS $153,646.50 

PeCRoe 

REMITTANCES TO TREASURER: 

Sewer Rents Collected $129,793.28 

Abatements 10,226.70 

Interest Collected 43.50 

Uncollected Rents 13,583.02 

TOTAL CREDITS $153,646.50 
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UNREDEEMED TAXES FROM TAX LIEN 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1990 

Alexander, James & Wright, Laura 

52/17 — 55 Wilmot Center Road 

Andrews, Robert C. 

72/36 — 27 Lakeside Road 

Banchik, Leo & Carol 

129/20 — 2 Little Sunapee Road 

Bonanno, Janet A. 

73/54 — 187 Main Street 

Brown, Clinton C., Jr. 

130/4 — 67 King Hill Road 

Carrington, Margaret E. 

46/9 — 59 Little Sunapee Road 

72/2 — 11 Newport Road 

72/3 — 13 Newport Road 

Condict, Edgar R. & Judith 

96/7 — 91 Main Street 

Cooper, Wade & Jody H. 

122/4 — 176 Route 11 

Corbett, Judith 

106/7 — 2 Beaver Point 

D’Arcy, Kenneth R. & Anita T. 

129/4 — 16 Tracy Road 

Garre, Peter S. 

108/2 — 6 Ridge View Road 

Godbout, Raymond W. & Louise A. 

122/5 — 172 Route 11 

122/30 — 124 Route 11 

Gordon, Judith & Cushing, Philbrick 

74/16 — 10 Birch Acres 

Grace, Daniel & Cohen, Lenard & 

Ottobrini, Harold 

76/18 — 47 Bunker Road 

Harrison, Carrie Lou 

103/17 — 203 Route 103A 

Kalenkowitz, Joseph & Shirley 

45/4 — 16 Murray Pond Road 

Kelsey, Wilbur E. 

42/20 — 49 Otterville Road 

Laganas, Peter C. 

81/7 — 17 Farwell Lane 

Levies of 

1989 1988 

$ 3,070.00 $ 2,307.58 

1,057.71 

2,105.19 1,003.85 

4,775.31 4,447.94 

1,739.61 598.94 

1,665.07 1,526.20 
2,162.63 Pedal t 
445.70 379.44 

3,664.45 

481.03 

1M 3 8 

860.72 

1,747.68 

1,254.37 
645.37 

1,747.50 1,495.07 

1,607.74 

688.78 

2,202.14 Rye: 

|i ead. 1,300.75 

577.02 522.49 



81/2 — 18 Farwell Lane 

81/1 — 22 Farwell Lane 

81/8 — 23 Farwell Lane 

Lavigne, Guy F. 

300/216 — 46 Newport Road, Unit 216 

300/218 — 46 Newport Road, Unit 218 

300/220 — 46 Newport Road, Unit 220 

Lewiston Enterprises 

300/204 — 46 Newport Road, Unit 204 

Long, Timothy 

129/5 — 14 Tracy Road 

MacMichael, Douglas & Suzanne 

92/4B — 21 Columbus Avenue 

Meding, Stephen Y. 

129/1 — 182 King Hill Road 

Messer, Joseph E. 

129/11 — 170 King Hill Road 

129/11A — 172 King Hill Road 

139/4 — 5 Stonehouse Road 

Messer, Joseph E. & Messer, Peter 

129/12 — 3 Bog Road 

Monahan, Thomas F. 

123/22 — 6 Fairway Lane 

Moses, Garrett & Judith K. 

450/68 — 50 Newport Road, Unit 68 

New London Cleaners 

72/19 — 19 Newport Road 

Palmer, Campbell & Judith 

77/15 — 4 Wilmot Center Road 

Pokravarian, Krikor & Vartouhi 

65/11 — 3 Lake Shore Drive 

Poole, Charles F. & Patricia M. 

77/22 — 33 Elkins Road 

Reney, Walter A. & Janice L. 

133/3 — 15 Old King Hill Road South 

Richardson, Douglas & Joyce 

105/21 — 84 Forest Acres Road 

Saxby, Daniel E. 

65/25 — 4 Sparrowhawk Road 

Shays, Anthony & Elizabeth 

45/24 — 5 South Cove Road 

Sholes, David F. & Betty A. 

65/21 — 26 Wilmot Center Road 

76 

560.89 
760.10 

1,602.23 

468.50 
777.96 
875.49 

888.87 

2,608.44 

1,248.58 

671.94 

046.28 
1,324.87 
2,827.21 

680.74 

077.31 

2,386.96 

6,258.04 

738.99 

1,284.52 

1,629.29 

994.92 

1,159.93 

687.20 

878.01 

506.74 

690.49 
1,446.20 

816.03 

1,195.69 

067.03 

901.39 

1,329.92 

601.38 



Squatrito, Dominic J. & Driscoll, John & Nancy 

75/8 — 19 Hall Farm Road sta a fee Pe 319.30 

Whitney, Donald L. 

128/11 — 179 Route 103A 52.95 

TOTAL UNREDEEMED TAXES 

FROM TAX LIENS $68,086.18 PAs etd AA AY | 

I hereby certify that the above list showing name and amount due from each delinquent 

taxpayer, as of December 31, 1990, on account of levies of 1988 and 1989, is correct 

to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

Respectfully submitted, 

LOIS E. MARSHALL 

Tax Collector 

Town of New London, N.H. 03257 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen 

Town of New London 

New London, New Hampshire 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose fund financial statements 

of the Town of New London as of and for the year ended December 31, 1989, 

as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibili- 

ty of the Town’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing stand- 

ards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 

the amounts and disclosure in the financial statements. An audit also includes 

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As described in Note 1B, the general purpose financial statements referred 

to above do not include the General Fixed Asset Group of Accounts, which should 

be included to conform with generally accepted accounting principles. The amount 

that should be recorded in the General Fixed Asset Account Group is not known. 

In our opinion, except that omission of the General Fixed Asset Group of Ac- 

counts results in an incomplete presentation, as explained in the above paragraph, 

the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of the Town of New London at December 

31, 1989, and the results of its operations and the changes in financial position 

of its nonexpendable trust funds for the year then ended, in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the combining and 

individual fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 

respects, the financial position of each of the individual funds of the Town of New 

London at December 31, 1989, and the results of operations of such funds for 

the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Plodzik and Sanderson 

Professional Association 

193 North Main Street 

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

Telephone: 603-225-6996 
May 4, 1990 
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REPORT OF 

THE NEW LONDON DISPATCH CENTER 

Over the years New London and the surrounding towns we 
dispatch for have experienced significant changes. The 
dispatch center has been able to make some improvements 
to help adjust to these changes. Last years updating of 
the phone system, and the new radio this year are two 
very important components for the efficient operation of 
the dispatch center. The dispatch center is a vital link 
between the public and their emergency services ( Fire, 
Police, Ambulance ), and without the continued support of 
the citizens of New London we would not be able to make 
the necessary improvements that enable us to perform our 
duties effectively. This support is indeed greatly 
appreciated. 

Listed below are the comparison figures for 1989 and 1990 
of the dispatch activities. 

1989 1990 

Telephone Calls Received 2.4 0 te Oo uo 
Burning Permits Issued piss aD 
Ambulance Calls 389 414 
Fire Calls 80 %) 
Aids To The Public 402 490 
Assist Other Departments 489 523 
Animals Lost or Stray P25 105 

Respectfully submitted, 

Stuart F. Sidmore, Jr. 

Chief Of Police 

and 

Deborah K. Wheeler 

Admin. Coordinator 
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Report for New London Area Chamber of Commerce---1990 

The major change for the New London Area Chamber of 
Commerce during 1990 was the addition of the word "area" 

to its name. This change more accurately reflects the 
membership base and the fact that New London has become 
the service center for the region. 

The NLACC undertook many projects during the year to help 
stimulate the business climate in the area and to provide 
services to the membership. The Newsletter was greatly 
expanded to include listings of business seminars, 
articles on good business practices and other information 
beyond the routine business of NLACC. A successful 
Business After Hours program was instituted, allowing 
members to interact with one another in informal 

settings. Luncheon meetings with interesting speakers 
and a member recognition breakfast were also held. On 
occasion NLACC has interceded with local officials on 
behalf of the business community needed a voice in local 
matters. 

Most recently the Chamber acted as coordinator for the 
Christmas in Our Town 1990 celebration, which included 

the decorating of the Town tree on the Haddad Bandstand, 
the Service of Lessons and Carols at the First Baptist 
Church, the decorating of the Old Colby Academy Building 
by the Garden Club and the dedication of the Tomie 
dePaola designed holiday installation at the Information 
Booth. It is planned to make this an annual event and 
Tomie dePaola has agreed to design an additional piece 
each season. 

Not to be overlooked, NLACC again managed the Information 
Booth on Main Street for the town. This past summer saw 
3,571 visitors to the booth seeking information on area 
businesses and events. Visitors to the booth came from 
as close as "down the street" to "half-way around the 
world," including Hong Kong, New Zealand, and Hungary. 
In addition the NLACC maintained a year ’round phone 
number to assist travellers and residents alike. One 
thousand thirty-seven additional requests for information 
were received by mail and telephone in 1990, all of which 
received a response. Were it not for the caring and 
dedication of Don and Nancy Bent, Information Directors, 
NLACC could not provide this service. 
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NLACC also again published its annual 
promotional/information piece New London: A Town for All 
Seasons. Over 25,000 were distributed through interstate 
rest areas, local businesses, the Information Booth and 

in response to mail requests. Plans are underway to 
further improve this publication for 1991. 

The Board of Directors wishes to thank all who assisted 
in the many projects during 1990 and looks forward to a 
busy and fruitful year. 

Respectfully Submitted 
s/Steve Mendelson 
Secretary/Clerk 
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The Ausbon Sargent Land Preservation Trust (ASLPT) 

1990 was an exciting year for ASLPT with widespread 
community support! About 125 people from New London and 
10 surrounding towns, staged the Town Hall Production, 

"Spring Shenanigans," which resulted in great area 
recognition of ASLPT’s land protection mission. 

During 1990 the Edward Parkhurst/Loren Sjostrom (42.44 
acres) and the Dorothy Adams/Edith Nordstom (7 acres) 
properties were permanently protected by means of a 
conservation easement. With this land protection method, 
the landowners retain ownership of their properties but 
permanent restrictions are placed on the land use. To 
date, ASLPT has protected 1/70 acres. Properties 
previously protected with an easement are owned by the 
following landowners: Rachel & Murray Sargent, Eunice B. 
Bohanon, Stanley Farm Association, Lincoln Gordon, Sarah 

and David Yerkes. 

ASLPT continues to work closely with the Town of New 
London and its Conservation Commission. On November l, 

ASPLT, in conjuction with the town, submitted an 
application to the state-funded Land Conservation 
Investment Program (LCIP) requesting funds to purchase 
the development rights (conservation easement) on 52 
acres of Spring Ledge Farm, Main Street. The LCIP will 
notify applicants of their acceptance during early 1991. 
Contingent upon LCIP approval, Jim Cleveland and Bill 
Kidder, Sr., have agreed to donate a conservation 
easement on a portion of their property which abuts 
Spring Ledge Farm. The combined properties would provide 
attractive public trail access for walking and 
cross-country skiing. 

ASLPT is enormously grateful to all the people who have 
given generously and especially to those landowners who 
have donated conservation easements. It is important 
that the townspeople continue to support ASLPT, so that 
our trust can proceeed with its efforts to preserve the 
rural character of New London. By protecting the 
landscape, we enhance the quality of life for now and. 
future generations. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Charles V. Sebring 

36 ASPLT Chairman 



Report of the Town of New London Health Officer 

During 1990 your health officer continued on a part-time 
basis to carry out those duties directed at the 
protection of the health and enviroment of our community. 
These duties consist primarily of the "enviromental 
health" aspects of public health including: inspection 
of child care facilities; investigation of septic system 
failures; enviromental problems, nuisances and a variety 
of complaints; advising residents on drinking water and 
septic system problems; observation and recording of test 
pit soil structure for plans to insure proper records of 
test pit data, upon which plans are based, and to insure 
compliance with New London regulations. 

During 1990, 81 plans were approved for construciton of 
septic systems. This compares with 68 plans approved in 
1989. In addition, in 1990, 46 sites were visited to 
consult and record 81 test pits on the following: one 
proposed subdivision; 15 lots for proposed new 
construction and 26 lots for replacement of septic 
systems of which 3 were in a state of failure. 
This compares with the 1986-1989 four year averages of 
58 sites comprising an average of 8.5 for subdivisions, 
38.5 for new construction and 13.67 for replacement 
systems. These statistics clearly demonstrate the 
continued slowing of new housing construction and the 
increasing need for replacement of older systems over the 
last four years. 

The most significant local public health incident of 1990 
was an outbreak of 25 to 30 cases of gastroenteritis 
associated with swimming during a particular time period 
at the Elkins Beach. The beach was closed for 36 hours 
for safety’s sake while tests were made and the source of 
infection determined to be from one or more active cases 
who went swimming and spread viruses in the swimming 

area. Person with upper respiratory and gastrointestinal 
ailments should refrain from using public swimming areas 
at the risk of spreading such illnesses through the water 
to other swimmers. 

The major public health risks to our community continue 
to be: 1. Smoking, primary and second hand smoke, with 
its proven cause of cancer and cardiovascular diseases; 
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2. Radon, and other radioactive elements, in water and 

air. Inhalation of radon and radioactive particles 
poses the same long term cancer risk as smoking. 
Gastrointestinal risks are also probable, but not yet 
well documented, from ingestion of elevated levels of 
uranium and its various radioactive decay products; 

3. The long term increased risk of cancer from ingestion 
of trichloromethane (chloroform) present in our public 
water supply; 4. The constant risk of giardiasis from a 
public water supply treated only by chlorination. 

The continued cooperation of New London’s citizens in 
elimination of health hazards is appreciated. I am 
always open to the questions and reports of people 
interested in environmental and health related problems. 

I also wish to express my appreciation to Donald C. 
Lamson, who, as Assistant Health Officer, performed my 

duties while I was away on vacation. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Donald F. Bent, Ph.D. 
Health Officer 
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New London Conservation Commission 

Each year seems the same, yet it is different. Our trail 
work program has the same goals--to keep paths open and 
attractive to hikers and nature lovers. We have lots of 
variety and the public has taken advantage of the 
facilities. We want this. 

One major change has been made. Our maintainance of the 
Royal Arch Trail has ended and the Springfield 
Conservation Commission has accepted the responsibility 
to maintain this trail. 

The Phillips Memorial Preserve on the hill between Goose 
Hole Pond and Otter Pond has increased in size due to the 
heirs of Haskell Reid giving us acreage adjacent to 
Interstate 89. This is a welcomed gift and increases the 
likelihood of adding more trails to the area. 

The Lyon Brook Trail from Lakeside Road to County Road 
will be affected by the construction of Glengae, the NL 
Hospital’s Retirement Center. We are working with the 
Hospital and its architects and engineers to assure the 
survival of the important flora and fauna in this plot. 

The NLCC has also had many meetings regarding the 
tentative development of land at Low Plain. We consider 
this site an important one for wildlife. Its variety is 
amazing and all parties in the discussions recognize 
this. The NH Wetlands Board is a factor in negotiations 
and a decision should be forthcoming soon. 

Last year, the status of the Messer property along Little 
Sunapee Road was in limbo. We had hoped that with the 
assistance of the NH Land Conservation Investment Program 
and the Ausbon Sargent Land Conservation Trust a 
satisfactory conclusion would be reached. Unfortunatley, 
the efforts were unsuccessful. 

Our non-working activities during the year included our 
annual Winter Walks in February and March, our Morning 
Walks in May and June, and an Earth Day acknowledgment 
with a tour of the Philbrick-Cricenti Bog. 
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The NLCC has many easements in town to monitor. It also 

acts as back-up grantee to the ASLPT on many easements 
they receive. The idea and action taken to preserve land 
and views in New London is outstanding. The opportunity 
to appreciate the concern residents have to keep New 
London, New London, is fantastic and the consideration 

to maintain this feeling is truly worthwhile. May it 
continue and spread. 

Our monthly meetings at the Town Hall have been changed 
to the third Wednesday of each month at 9:15 am. We have 
occasional visitors and would welcome more as we do need 
the input of ideas from outside the Commission. 

Respectfully Submitted 
VH Adams 

Chairman 

Conservation Commission 

Vernon Adams 

Chairman ’°93 

Katherine T. Murray 
Secretary ’91 

Sue Andrews ’92 

Herwood Curtiss ’93 

Luther Child ’92 

Linda Kilar ’92 

George Payne ’93 
Esther Currier 

Life Member Emeritus 
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UPPER VALLEY-LAKE SUNAPEE COUNCIL 

1990 Report to Member Communities 

There are nine Regional Planning Commissions in New Hampshire and 12 in 

Vermont. Like the others, the Upper Valley-Lake Sunapee Council is a private, 

non-profit corporation enabled by state legislation. 

Overall, our duties fall into two categories: 

— Provide services to member Towns 

— Address regional issues. 

Services to Towns 

Four types of basic services are available to member Towns: 

— Information: We maintain a library of pertinent planning information, and 

have a capable staff with expertise in many areas of planning. 

— Advice: Perhaps our most valuable service. We spend a lot of time on the 

telephone and in our office simply giving advice on planning issues, based on 

our cumulative experience and expertise. 

— Hands-On Help: ‘‘Hands-on’’ services are one step beyond advice. Ex- 

amples include: reviewing an ordinance, providing a linkage to a state or federal 

program, reviewing a proposed development project, explaining how a certain 

aspect of planning usually works and investigating what is appropriate in a given 

situation, exploring alternative solutions for a particular problem. 

— In-Depth Support: We do transportation planning, master plans, or- 

dinances, natural resource planning, capital improvement programs, impact fee 

studies, opinion surveys, impact studies for large projects, and other special 

studies of many sorts. A number of towns also take advantage of our circuit rider 

planning program. Usually, we must charge in addition to dues for support in 

depth, to meet our expenses and break even. This type of support is available 

only to member communities (we do not do any work for private companies or 

individuals), and at far less cost than comparable expertise from a private con- 

sulting firm. 

Regional Issues 

We also provide a forum for regional issues. Currently we are working regionally 

on community development, economic development, solid waste, hazardous 

waste, transportation, housing, and studies related to Lake Sunapee and the Con- 

necticut River. We are almost always able to support these efforts with state 

funds and/or special grants. Some of the state funding does vary depending on 

how much local support we have via dues. 

Services Available 

As noted, one primary function of UVLSC is to provide planning services to 

member communities. Many of these services are directly related to the plan- 

ning and zoning activities of the communities, but others are more specialized. 

It is useful to take a closer look at some of these specialized resources. They 

tend to vary over time, as different issues come to the fore. Our current ser- 

vices are listed below. 
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Community Development 
UVLSC administers Community Development Block Grant programs for 

member communities in New Hampshire. We also prepare grant applications to 

obtain funding under this program. Monies are passed through by the State from 

Federal sources, and are currently used in three ways: for housing rehabilita- 

tion, water supply, and municipal building improvement programs. We have been 

highly successful in obtaining funding for this program, and have brought over 

$3,000,000 worth of Community Development money into the region during the 

past four years. 

Economic Development 

We started the Sullivan County Economic Development Commission six years 

ago, and have helped support it ever since, with partial funding and by providing 

overall administrative services. This highly successful organization is now being 

‘‘spun off,’ to become a separate entity, and our funding committment ends at 

the end of the year. This will allow us to turn our attention to other issues in 

Sullivan County, while the Economic Development Commission simultaneously 

continues its mission of bringing new business into the region. We are also begin- 

ning to turn our attention to economic development issues in the rest of the 

Region. 

Transportation Planning 

We are heavily involved in the 1988 Upper Valley Transportation Study, which 

provided detailed recommendations for transportation improvements in the core 

of the Upper Valley (Hanover, Hartford, Lebanon, and Norwich). This study 

developed a computer model of the transportation network in the core area, which 

we continue to maintain and upgrade. We also have done a number of studies 

of mass transit issues and options in the area. We continue to provide transpor- 

tation planning services to a number of member communities. 

Environmental Planning 

UVLSC is involved in regional solid waste planning in both New Hampshire 

and Vermont. We continue to support and advise the Upper Valley Solid Waste 

District in New Hampshire, and the Greater Upper Valley Solid Waste Manage- 

ment District in Vermont. We are also involved in water quality planning in a 

number of ways. We have prepared Water Quality Management Plans for several 

New Hampshire towns. We continue to be involved with the New Hampshire 

Connecticut River Valley Resource Commission and the Vermont Connecticut 

River Advisory Council, devising long-term strategies for preserving appropriate 

land uses along the Connecticut River. We are also working on shoreline protec- 

tion ordinances around Lake Sunapee. 

Land Preservation 

We continue to support and cooperate with land preservation efforts throughout 

the region. 
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GIS — Geographic Information Systems 

We continue to work with this new technology. We are a GIS service center 

for member communities in both New Hampshire and Vermont, with three trained 

staff people, and we have provided advice regarding GIS to many member towns. 

Currently, UVLSC is working with a number of member towns to provide maps 

and analyses for Master Plans, utilities, and special land evaluation studies. The 

possibilities for utilizing GIS and integrating it with all aspects of planning are 

widespread, and as more data becomes available from the states, GIS becomes 

more cost effective for smaller communities. As GIS becomes an every-day reality 

throughout New Hampshire and Vermont during the next several years, UVLSC 

will be able to offer more GIS mapping and analyzing services to member towns. 

* * * * * * * * * 

During 1990, UVLSC was involved in a wide variety of activities. These included: 

e As in the past several years, provided consultation and help to over two- 

thirds of the local communities. (Which two-thirds this is varies — not all com- 

munities request help every year.) 

e Continued to work with the Geographical Information System (GIS). We com- 

pleted a regional land use analysis and began work on region-wide data layers 

for base maps, including municipal boundaries, roads, water bodies, and rail 

lines. We were designated an official Service Center by the Vermont Office 

of GIS. We were also instrumental in getting our Vermont towns to the top 

of the list for state-funded base mapping of tax plat maps. We also began GIS 

project work for Hartford and Thetford. 

e Continued to promote a consistent land use classification system for both New 

Hampshire and Vermont to use in GIS mapping. 

e Developed a Land Use element for the Regional Plan. This included creating 

a series of four regional land use maps using the GIS. 

e Met repeatedly with state officials and agency representatives to influence policy 

and help keep the region an active participant in many ongoing programs. 

e Maintained a library of regional data, and answered numerous requests for 

information. 

e Provided extensive support to our Vermont towns for solid waste district for- 

mation, in cooperation with the Two Rivers Ottauquechee Regional Commis- 

sion. We also worked toward fulfilling our other responsibilities under Act 78, 

Vermont’s solid waste law. 

e Assisted the Upper Valley Solid Waste District (on the New Hampshire side), 

sponsored a number of meetings of the District, worked toward revising the 

District plan to accommodate comments from the State of New Hampshire, 

and worked toward implementation of regional solid waste solutions where 

appropriate. 

e Continued to make available the services of a recycling coordinator to New 

Hampshire towns. Among other things, we assisted in a number of successful 

grant applications for recycling projects. 
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Continued to administer the Upper Valley Household Hazardous Waste Col- 

lection program. Helped move the program toward providing some form of year- 

round collection efforts, coupled with increased public education. 

Completed a number of Water Quality Management Plans for inclusion in town 

Master Plans under NH Chapter 167. 

Continued to provide support for an economic development agent in Sullivan 

County, to help retain and expand employment opportunities in the area. This 

highly successful organization became administratively independent in 1990, 

and will be financially fully independent as of January, 1991. We continue to 

have overlapping Board memberships with this organization. 

Participated in a second year of statewide dialog regarding Impact Fee legisla- 

tion during the legislative session in New Hampshire. 

Sponsored local sessions of the NH Municipal Law Lecture series. 

Participated in the Governor’s Council for the 21st Century. 

Administered a number of Community Development Block Grants. These 

grants have brought several million dollars worth of rehabilitation and municipal 

improvement funds into the region during the past few years. Only 2 of the 

9 regional planning agencies in New Hampshire provide this service. 

Continued to work with the computer model developed during the Upper Valley 

Transportation Study to assess the traffic impacts of several large proposed 

development projects, and to assess the impacts of changes to the roadway 

network. 

Continued support for the Transportation Coordinating Committee, formed 

in 1989 at the request of the New Hampshire Department of Transportation. 

e Provided technical assistance to Advance Transit and County Coach. 

Continued a study of public transportation for social service agencies in near- 

by towns in Vermont. 

Complied with applicable Act 200 requirements at the local, regional, and state 

level, including participation in the Council of Regional Commissions. 

Participated in review of Act 200, the new comprehensive planning legislation 

in Vermont, including legislative strategy sessions. 

Participated in the Vermont Act 250 environmental review process for a number 

of regionally significant projects. 

e Sponsored local sessions of the VT planning training series. 

e Worked with the communities around Lake Sunapee to develop a shoreline 

protection ordinance. 

Worked closely with the Upper Valley Land Trust, Society for the Protection 

of New Hampshire Forests, the Trust for New Hampshire Lands, and the Con- 

necticut River Watershed Council to protect open space and conserve impor- 

tant parcels of land. 

Continued to participate in and work with the Connecticut River Valley Resource 

Commission. This commission allows New Hampshire towns in the Connec- 

ticut River Valley to join together in addressing issues such as growth, develop- 

ment, and preservation of the natural environment. 
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e Completely revised and updated our Regional Profile, and distributed copies 

to member towns. 

The Upper Valley-Lake Sunapee Council also provides specific services to com- 

munities on a contract basis. As requested by the communities, the Council con- 

ducted impact studies regarding proposed development, worked on amend- 

ments/updates to local ordinances and regulations, drafted new ordinances, per- 

formed capital improvement programs, and provided general mapping, drafting, 

and other technical assistance. 

The Upper Valley-Lake Sunapee Council looks forward to serving your com- 

munity during the coming year. Please feel free to contact us for more informa- 

tion about specific activities in your community, or whenever we can be of 

assistance. 
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NEW LONDON PLANNING BOARD 

During 1990 the New London Planning Board reviewed a 
variety of conceptual, preliminary, and final 
applications culminating in the following: 

Eleven annexation proposals were approved resulting in 
the elimnation of 389 previously approved lots in New 
London. 

Five minor subdivisions were approved resulting in the 
creation of 8 new lots. Two previously approved minor 
subdivisions were amended resulting in the elimination 
of one lot. 

Six site plan proposals were approved. 

One major subdivision was approved resulting in the 
creation of 12 new lots. One previously approved major 
subdivision was amended. 

One cluster development was approved. 

One home occupation was approved. 

Significant projects carried over to 1991 include one 
cluster/subdivision proposal, one site plan proposal, and — 
one planned unit development. 

Following reviews with the Selectmen and the Budget 
Committee, the Capital Improvements Program was updated 
and approved for the 1991 - 2000 period. 

The New London Zoning Ordinance was reviewed, proposed 
amendments were presented at two public hearings, and 
recommended amendments were presented to town voters at 
the town meeting. 

A review of the Site Plan Review Regulations was 
completed and proposed amendments were presented at two 
public hearings. These amendments were adopted by the 
Planning Board. 

A review of the new London land subdivision Control 
Regulations was initiated and proposed amendments will be 
presented at public hearings in 1991. 
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Changes to thse regulations are designed to clarify, 
correct and permit consistent application of 
theregulations while ensuring complenance with state and 
federal requirements. Additions to these regulations are 
designed to (1) promote orderly and planned growth, (2) 
foster development of an economically and environmetally 
sound and stable community, and (3) protect the interests 
of the public and the taxpayer from the consequences of 
improper and unmanaged growth. 

The Planning Board thanks those residents of New London 
who have attended our public hearings and expressed their 
opinions and thoughts about proposed changes or additions 
to these New London regulations. We are appreciative of 

your involvement. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Charles A Mortensen 
Chairman, Planning Board 



REPORT OF THE NEW LONDON FIRE DEPART MENT 

The 1990 fire season opened with a flurry of activity, with 10 
chimney fires in the first two months. Unfortunately, there was also a 
serious structure fire during this period of time, resulting in the death 

of a dog and a cat, but there was only minor structural damage to the 

building itself. 

There was also a tractor trailor roll-over on the interstate in which 

the driver was trapped. Fortunately, with our new extrication 

equipment, we were able to remove the victim from the badly 
mangled cab in only afew minutes. 

Since the spring, however, fire calls have dropped off considerably, 
leaving us a little below last year in the number of overall calls. | am 
particularly pleased with the decrease in both false alarms and illegal 

burning activity. 

For many years the fire chiefs of New London have dreaded the 
thought of a major fire at the college. The size of the buildings coupled 

with the relatively poor delivery rate of the water system at that 
elevation would make for a tense firefighting situation, even in 

sprinklered buildings. With the installation of the new atheletic 

facility however, we now have access to over 250,000 gallons of pool 

water through a dry hydrant and through several pressurised outlets 

fed by a 1,000 gallon per minute pump. In effect, we have what 
amounts to a stationary fire truck on campus. This would also serve as 

a backup firefighting water sourse for the Main St. area in the event of 

a water system failure. 

The New London Fire Department continues to be at full 

membership, with high levels of enthusiasm, skill and ability. Most of 
Our equipment, though showing signs of age, continues to serve us 
well. Our ladder truck, which is scheduled to be replaced next year, 

suffered an engine failure last spring. The engine was replaced at with 

a used motor from a old wrecked City of Concord fire truck to get us 
by for the time being. Replacement of this truck is now our highest 

priority. 

In closing, we again remind you to be careful using woodstoves, 

fireplaces, or any other alternative heat source and avoid the use of 

unvented space heaters. If you have questions regarding fire safety or 
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the fire department, please don't hesitate to contact me or any 
member of the department. 

Respectfully submitted, 

PETER S. STANLEY 
Fire Chief 

Fire Calls 1990 

Structure Fires 

Chimney Fires 
Vehicle Fires 

Extrications 

Brush Fires 

Illegal Burn 

Kitchen Fires 

Bomb Threat 

Furnace Malfunction 

Report of Smoke 
Alarm Response 

False Alarms 
Rescue 

Electrical Wires Down 

Hazardous Material Cleanup 

Mutual Aid - Structure 

Mutual Aid - Other 

Hospital Drills 

Disaster Drill 

Other 
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REPORT OF TOWN FOREST FIRE WARDEN 
AND STATE FOREST RANGER 

During Calendar Year 1990, the State of New Hampshire experienced an average 

number of wildfires. The three leading causes of these wildfires were fires kindled 

without a fire permit from the Forest Fire Warden, permit fires that escaped 

control and rekindled fires. All these fires are preventable, but ONLY with your 

help. 

Please help your town and state forest fire officials with forest fire prevention. 

By New Hampshire State Law (RSA 224:27 II), “‘No persons, firm or corpora- 

tion shall kindle or cause to be kindled any fire or burn or cause to be burned 

any material, except when the ground is covered with snow, without first ob- 

taining a written fire permit from the Forest Fire Warden of the town 

where the burning is to be done.’ 

Violations of RSA 224:27 II and the other burning laws of the State of New 

Hampshire are misdemeanors punishable by fines of up to $1,000 and/or a year 

in jail and you are also liable for paying all fire suppression costs. 

The State of New Hampshire, Division of Forests and Lands assisted many 

towns in wildland fire suppression during 1990 including a 262-acre fire in Moulton- 

boro and several fires in Hooksett. 

In 1990, the New Hampshire Division of Forests and Land trained 844 local 

Wardens and Deputy Wardens in the Incident Command System (ICS), an inci- 

dent management system for all types of emergencies. In 1991, Wardens will 

be trained in the use of Class A foam in wildfire suppression. 

If you have any questions regarding New Hampshire forest fire laws, please 

contact your local Forest Fire Warden, State Forest Ranger, or the Division of 

Forests and Lands at 271-2217. 

Forest Fire Statistics — 1990 

State District N. London 

Number of Fires 489 Hey 

Acres Burned 473 38 

BRYAN C. NOWELL PETER STANLEY 

Forest Ranger Forest Fire Warden 
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Report of the Road Agent for 1990 

To the honorable members of the Board of Selectmen and 

the citizens of the town of New London. 

The year 1990 while a productive year for the department 

was a difficult, if not impossible year, for your road 
agent. I must thank the fine and caring people of New 
London for their thoughts and prayers, cards, telephone 
calls, and personal visits during my wife’s year long, 
losing battle with cancer. No words can express our 
appreciation for your love and concern for our family 
during this trying period. 

I must also apologize to some of you for being out of 
sorts, short of word, and sometimes just plain downright 
irritable. No excuses, such conduct is uncalled for 

regardless of the reason. You have my sincerest 
apologies. 

Cemetery Division 

The division continued the daily maintenance of our three 
town cemeteries along with all of the town’s commons, 
parks, and beaches. 

Veteran’s graves received flags twice during the year. 
The division has also begun the process of identifying 

each veteran’s grave site that does not have a military 
stone. Once identified the individual stones are ordered 
from the Veterans Administration. 

Highway Division 

The division contracted for the installation of sidewalks 
on Elkins Road and Main Street. The Pleasant Street 
sidewalk from Main Street to Gould Road was rebuilt by 
the Kearsarge Telephone Company following the 
installation of underground conduits. With the exception 
of a foot bridge on Elkins Road to some additional paving 
and minor repairs on Main Street, the sidewalk program 
authorized by the town is completed. A total 10,328 feet 
of sidewalks have been rebuilt under the program. 
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Tree take downs were contracted for 1/7 streets (Soo-Nipi 
Road, Soo-Nipi Park Road, Hastings Landing, Page Road, 
County Road, Tracy Road, Bog Road, Pleasant Street, 
Pingree Road, Lake Shore Drive, Wilmot Center Road, 

Sherman Street, Scyth Shop Road, Hillcrest Road, Elkins 

Road and Bunker Hill Road). Over 400 dead trees were 
removed and a like number trimmed. 

The Great Brook Bridge on Pleasant Street was replaced by 
contrast. This is the last wooden deck bridge within the 
town. The new pre-cast, pre-stressing, concrete bridge 
should give the town many years of good service. 

Work on the Pleasant Lake Dam continued during the year 
with completion of the project scheduled for the spring 
of 1991. This division contructed a closed drain system 
on the west end of Burpee Hill Road. 
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Much time was devoted to street improvements on Wilmot 
Center Road, Elkins Road, Sherman Street, Hillcrest 
Drive, Scyth Shop Road, Lake Shore Drive, Pleasant 

Street, and Farwell Lane. In addition to tree take 

downs, ditches were cleared, culverts and drains repaired 
or replaced, rocks removed, and new pavement surfaces 

applied to all of these streets. A total of 32,595 feet 
of roadway or 6.1/7 mileswas completed during the year 
within appropriation. Our 5 year total is now 80,591 
feet or 15.26 miles. 

The division, for the second year in a row, hauled all of 

its clean ditch material and other clean fill (rocks, 
logs, sand, etc.) to the Shepard Pit on Mountain Road. 
This material is being used to fill the pit and reclaim 
the land for future reforestation. When completed this 
large open scar will disappear to become a quiet, green 
space for the town’s future use. 

Recycling and Disposal Division 

I am very pleased to again be able to report that our 
community recycling program has grown better than ever, 

the best is truly better. The town continues to be 
bombarded with calls and visits from around the country 
to examine our facilities and programs. The town is 
currently being considered for a national award for its 
solid waste programs. 

Our recycling programs have been successful because you 
as citizens have given your whole hearted support. It is 
your support that has contributed enough materials to 

make the program self-supporting and return a profit to 
the town. Not many communities can claim, let alone, 
prove it. Total recyclied products totalled 683.84 tons 
or 25.02% of all solid waste was recycled saving the town 
$64,629.02. Thank you for the opportunity to provide a 
service that you have expressed so strong a desire for. 
Our continued leadership roll within the state is a 
result of your commitment and dedication. 

In closing I would like to thank our citizens for their 

help and continued support during this year of great 
adversity and stress to my family and myself. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Frederick W. Welch 
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NH/VT SOLID WASTE PROJECT 
ANNUAL REPORT OF ACTIVITIES 

The New Hampshire/Vermont Solid Waste Project has performed its functions 

of providing facilities for the final disposal of municipal solid waste and disposal 

of ash residue from the waste-to-energy facility successfully this year. We have 

also continued work in the planning for a completely integrated solid waste 

management facility which will encompass not only the operations of an ash landfill 

and waste-to-energy plant, but also a comprehensive recycling, reduction, and 

reuse program and a means of handling the special waste stream. 

The litigation between the Project and the design, engineering and construc- 

tion firms over their performance of contracted obligations is ongoing. A resolu- 

tion of this matter is expected in the Spring of 1991. 

The Wheelabrator Claremont waste-to-energy facility has continued to per- 

form as designed. The plant was shut down in May and September for scheduled 

preventative maintenance. These shutdowns were of short duration (2-3 days). 

In September, a plant modification was performed to the economizer section of 

the boilers to increase the efficiency of the plant. The waste-to-energy facility 

was cited on May 17 by the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Ser- 

vices for allowing excess emissions of CO, to take place. Corrective action was 

taken and this situation no longer exists. 

Deliveries of trash to the facility have not been as high as predicted this year. 

There are several reasons for this. Among the reasons are increased participa- 

tion in residential and commercial recycling, waste diversion, and a slow economy. 

The resulting shortfall in tonnage due to the above reasons caused Wheelabrator 

Claremont Co., L.P. to allow the Project to enter the spot rubbish market to 

seek tonnage to fulfill the contractual obligations. This effort has been reasonably 

effective and will minimize any penalty that may be incurred for underdelivery. 

Planning for the second stage of the ash landfill has commenced. Nobis 

Engineering Inc. of Concord, New Hampshire, is preparing conceptual plans for 

this expansion. Once these plans are accepted, they will then proceed to the 

final design and permitting process. The first stage of the landfill is expected 

to reach capacity in the Spring of 1992. In order for us to be ready to use the 

second stage in a timely manner, construction of the second stage should be 

completed during the construction season of 1991. Monies for this expansion 

will come from the Capital Reserve Fund. 

Carl Hirth, Solid Waste Planner for the Southern Windsor/Windham Counties 

Solid Waste Management District has administered the Vermont State Planning 

Grant during 1990. Grant funding was received and output reports were submit- 

ted to the Agency of Natural Resources in preparation for submitting a Twenty 

Year plan for the entire District. This Plan should be completed by Spring 1990. 

In early 1990, consultants from R. W. Beck and Dufresne & Henry, began the 

process of developing various systems to cost out and analyzed options for the 
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handling of the total waste stream. The consultants developed a Draft Report 

in early 1990 and a Final Report was presented in September 1990. They con- 

centrated on specific segments of the waste stream including traditional recyclables 

and special wastes, for example, tires, appliances, and demolition/construction 

material. They costed out essentially three different types of systems. 

Systems I & II were locally organized for collection, processing, and marketing 

of recyclables. Systems III & IV were locally organized collection with central- 

ized processing and marketing. A facility called a Materials Recovery Facility 

(MRF) would prepare the recyclables for end markets. System V was an entire- 

ly centralized mixed waste processing facility. In addition, in all systems a by- 

pass landfill for non-combustible waste was costed out. The continued operation 

of the waste-to-energy facility and ash landfill also was assumed. As of November 

1990, the District has not made final recommendations on preferred systems. 

Three Vermont District Towns, Cavendish, Ludlow, and Weathersfield are 

managing most parts of the waste stream at their transfer stations and recycling 

centers. In 1990, Windsor and Springfield are planning expanded recycling col- 

lection programs and drop-off sites, and Westminster is going to expand their 

curbside recycling program. Many District towns however, cannot handle all their 

waste stream, in particular recyclables and special wastes such as tires. The Ver- 

mont District, therefore, is required to plan for the management of the entire 

waste steam according to the State Legislation Act 78. New Hampshire does not 

have similar legislation. 

Recycling in the entire NH/VT Solid Waste Project area, although mostly 

handled by the private sector, individual towns, and intertown agreements Is a 

major goal. The Project supports the efforts of member towns who have initiated 

public sector residential recycling. In New Hampshire, 12 of 16 towns, and in 

Vermont, 9 of 13 towns, have a recycling collection program. As of December 

1990, three New Hampshire towns have instituted mandatory residential programs. 

One Project town recently chose not to go mandatory, but instituted voluntary 

recycling collection programs integrated with user fees for trash. Towns market 

their recyclables in various ways including: local users, local haulers, local pro- 

cessors, and the New Hampshire Resource Recovery Association. 

In addition, the Project supports aggressive commercial recycling and reduc- 

tion. Many private haulers offer separate collection of corrugated cardboard from 

businesses. The collection of high grade paper, both copying and computer paper, 

has also expanded in the Project area in 1990. Most of the commercial or institu- 

tional recycling is done in conjunction with private haulers and private processors. 

In 1990, the Project also co-sponsored two Special Waste Collection Days in- 

cluding tires. In addition, the Project shipped 20 55-gallon drums, approximately 

6 tons, of household batteries for appropriate disposal. Annual Household Hazar- 

dous Waste Collection Days however, were not held, instead opting for considera- 

tion of a permanent collection site. Finally, a New Hampshire State Grant for 

metals collection containers was applied for and awarded in late 1990. New Hamp- 

shire towns thus will be able to expand their collection of metals. 
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Report of the New London Garden Club 

In 1928 Dr. Anna Littlefield founded the New London 
Garden Club with the following purposes in mind; to 
encourage and aid in all civic beautification; to 
protect and perpetuate plants and birds; to promote and 
encourage a knowledge and love of gardening and 
horticulture; and to stimulate an interest in all people 
to work with and for nature. 

Our meetings are every second Tuesday of the month and 
guests are welcome at most meetings. We also have four 
major projects during the year involving the entire 
membership. 

July 28, 1990 was our 24th Annual Antique Show and Sale 
held on the Village Green. This is the club’s only money 
making project and is needed to fund other projects, 
such as; scholarships, Christmas greens, and civic 
beautification. 

Each year the New London Garden Club presents to the 
University of New Hampshire two scholarships. One to the 
Department of Plant Science, the other to the Thompson 
School of Applied Science. 

The civic beautification committee is responsible for 
planting and maintaining fifteen individual areas in the 
town with a budget of over $3,000.00. Each year a 
beautification contest generates an enormous display of 
color on Main Street with prizes given in the commercial 
and residential catagories. The Garden Club feels it has 
been a major factor in making New London one of the most 
beautiful towns in New Hampshire. 

In December the Garden Club gathers greens and trimmings 

and makes 34 wreaths for the public buildings, schools, 
churches, library, and hospital. We also send 
Christmas favors to all the patients in extended care. 

This year the New London Garden Club helped with a 
substantial donation to the Tracy Memorial Library Fund, 
and will continue helping with the landscaping and 
gardens. 
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With the hope of making gardening and horticulture 
information available to all, the club has donated a 

subsciption to "Horticulture" magazine. "The Royal 
Horticulture Society Digest" and a complete set of the 

Time-Life Encyclopedia of Gardening, 1989 edition to the 

Tracy Memorial Library. 

There are 125 hard working members in the club. We area 
member of the Monadnock District, New England Region, 
New Hampshire Federation of Garden Clubs, inc., the 
National Council of State Garden Clubs, The Royal 
Horticultural Society, and the Arnold Arboretum. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Mary Ann Rayno 

President 1990 
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HISTORY AND ARCHIVES COMMITTEE 

Many people have asked ‘‘Where is the archives’? The New London Archives 

is located in the ‘‘new** section of the town hall directly under the town clerk’s 

office. It is open Wednesday mornings and by appointment other times. The ar- 

chives is an active, interesting place and not a dark, stuffy dungeon. Do come 

and take a look around. You will be surprised what you will find! 

Where are the records of current organizations and/or businesses of New Lon- 

don? Attics, closets and cellars are not good places for them. In the archives, 

there is the proper temperature and humidity and also the threat of fire is greatly 

reduced. Your designated people will have access to the records when needed. 

Early records may not seem valuable but they are and will be even more so to 

future generations. Please see that these old records are placed in the archives. 

Several organizations, the New London Garden Club and the Boys Club, have 

kept their records in the archives for a number of years. 

This year, the archives has received seven volumes of regiment histories of 

the N.H. Volunteers as well as a Myra B. Lord History of New London (original). 

Also received are numerous donations of old programs, booklets, newspapers, 

catalogs, letters, town reports and maps. Among the photos received are 24 of 

the early ski tow — Northeast Slopes on Bunker Road. Many of you should come 

in and see yourselves about 1956! 

In addition to people coming to do research, two individuals representing two 

different areas have been to the archives to see how it has been set up. Ques- 

tions were answered. We welcome this type of inquiry and are proud to show 

others what we have done. 

More transcribing and photographing of gravestones in the Elkins Cemetery 

were done during the summer. 

An all-day photograph workshop and a workshop about publishing (especially 

for town histories) were attended in Keene. Both were very worthwhile. I also 

particiated in a two-day genealogical conference in Westborough, MA, which was 

presented by the New England Historic Genealogical Society. 

Barbara Stearns is looking for more people to transcribe oral history tapes. 

Anyone interested please contact either one of us. 

The ‘‘House’’ project is ongoing. Progress is slow when only a few people are 

working on it. If anyone has the interest to research house and other buildings, 

old foundations or areas where activity in the past took place, we would like you 

to join us. Please make yourself known! 

Respectively submitted, 

MARGARET MORELAND 

Town Archivist 
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NEW LONDON RECREATION COMMISSION 

YEAR END REPORT 

The Recreation Commission oversees the operations and 
waterfront programs of New London’s public beaches: 
Elkins Beach and Bucklin Beach. 

This year the Recreation Commission was aided by Laurie 
Sanborn as Recreation Director. Laurie’s tasks were to 

manage both beaches and staffs, develop safe waterfront 
procedures, and train and teach lifeguards/staff. Under 
her watchful eyes the programs instructed 41 preschool 

children, 57 beginners, 58 advanced beginners, 3/7 
intermediates, 15 swimmers, 9 advanced swimmers, and 4 

lifeguard training students. The program consisted of 

two four-week sessions. 

Beaches were opened for weekends only starting Memorial 
Day weekend until fully opening in mid-June. 
Full lifeguard staffing was maintained from June 23rd 
through August 26th. Unguarded beaches were left open 
through September. 

We gratefully acknowledge outgoing commission members for 

their years of devoted volunteer service. Special thanks 
go to Deborah Prescott and Bruce Parsons. 

1991 . . . Beaches will be opened, but not guarded, 

weekends only from Memorial Day until June 22nd. Beaches 
will be guarded from June 22nd to August 25th. Lessons 
will be two four-week sessions from June 24th to July 
18th and July 30th to August 22nd. Keep your eyes open 
for further information and program sign-ups in the 
Kearsarge Shopper later this year. The beaches will not 
be guarded past August 25th. 

Rspectfully submitted: 

Jeff Hollinger, Che. lah 
Laurie Bride 
Sherri Ensign 
Steven Hadley 
Paul Messer 
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1990 Sewer Commission Report 

The Sewer Commission started the calendar year of 1990 
working with the Sewer Review Committee, the Selectmen, 
and the residents of Job Seamans and Birch Acres 
attempting to work out and present to the Town a fair and 
equitable article for the extension of the sewer lines to 
these areas. The Article was voted down at Town Meeting. 
The Commission wishes to thank all the towns people, 
committee members, and Selectmen who worked cooperatively 
and responsibly towards formulating this article. 

The Sunapee Treatment Plant has started its two-year 
modernization plan. The equalization gate is almost 
complete and the remainder of the work is continuing. 

Throughout the year miscellaneous sewer lines were 
repaired. The thrust of our work in 1991 will be 
centered upon upgrading manholes and improving our 
measuring capabilities. 

Monitoring effluents which is hazardous or not 

permissible to be discharged into the municipal sewers 
continues to be a policing job. Our employees are 
stringently enforcing these rules and regulation so that 
the Town of Sunapee continues to meet it discharge 
permit. If the sewer users have questions regarding what 
is or is not allowed "down the drain" sewer employees can 
be reached daily by phone or the Commission meets weekly 
on Wednesdays from 8:30 to 10:00 am. Thank you for your 

cooperation. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Ann S. Beardsley 

Chairman 
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Report of Town of New London Bandstand Committee---1990 

This past year saw the second series of concerts at the 
Mary Haddad Memorial Bandstand on Sargent Common. 
Apparently into every concert season a little rain must 

fall, with three out of five presentation having to be 
relocated to Whipple Hall due to inclement weather. 
Despite this inconvenience, the Committee feels the 
summer series continues to be well received with record 
crowds both in and outdoors. 

For the gala Fourth of July weekend, we were most 
fortunate to obtain the 39th New Hampshire Army National 
Guard Band, who performed a rousing program to an "SRO" 

crowd at the Town Hall. A particular highlight of the 
summer was the "Barbershopping Prgram" presented by the 
North Country Chordsmen, a group featuring several local 
residents. It was most gratifying to look at the Common 
filled with people of all ages enjoying this traditional 
art form in that peaceful setting. 

For those who enjoy traditional community bands, the 
Westmoreland Town Band offered an evening of music and 
relaxation such as it might have been seventy-five years 
ago. The big band sounds of the Bob Cunniff Orchestra 
prompted several audience members to get up and 
jitterbug. Rounding out the series, the Claremont (NH) 
American Band gave a varied concert that set many a toe 
a-tapin’. 

Based on the turnout and the generous response to the 
voluntary "passing of the hat," the Committee realizes 
that its efforts are not in vain. Unfortunately, in 
these economic times, the fees required to bring these 
groups to the Bandstand continue to escalate. While 
reaffirming its pledge to remain totally non-tax funded, 
the Committee is currently looking at alternate means of 
funding. No endowment exists to pay for this 
entertainment and available funds are rapidly dwindling. 
We welcome any and all input on this subject from 
interested parties. 
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I must again extend my heartfelt thanks to a most hard 
working and dedicated committee: Vinita Gay, Anna Green, 
William and Harriet Kidder, Norman Leger, James Moreland, 
Mary Teach, and Ruth Sisson. The latter, remaining 
indispensible as Program Chair, locates, negotiates and 
is liaison with the many bands and groups that appear. 
Also the many friends who come as audience and volunteer 
to assist cannot be overlooked. These concerts are truly 
a "community activity"! 

I am writing this at that very special time of year, when 

the Bandstand is most beautiful with decorations for the 
holiday season provided by the New London Area Chamber of 
Commerce, which feature a large tree donated by a citizen 
of the Town. I also think back to the lovely landscaping 
during the spring and summer provided by the New London 
Garden Club. The Bandstant is becoming a symbol of our 
Town and the contributions of these groups should not go 

unheralded. 

As a Committee we look forward to another successful 

summer series in 1991. Bands are already being 
contracted, dates set and plans made for next summer. 
Were it not for the response from the community, all this 
could not happen---and we thank you one and all. 

Respectfully Submitted 
s/Steve Mendelson 

Chair, Town of New London 

Bandstand Committee 
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1990 Report of Services Provided in New London 

1990 was a year of change and growth for Lake Sunapee 
Home Health Care. In February, we changed our name to 
Lake Sunapee Health Care and affiliates, Lake Sunapee 
Home Care and Hospice and Lake Sunapee Community Heal 
Services. We also merged with the Hospice of the 

th 

Kearsarge Valley and now provide hospice volunteers as an 
additional service. 

Demand for patient care increased due in part to more 
requests from physicians, hospitals, insurers, and people 
in the community. Professional and support staff 
responded to the growing need by maintaining demanding 
patient caseloads throughout the year. 

During the year we received memorial and general 
donations which were important and greatly appreciated. 
These gifts enabled us to provide care to people who 
would otherwise be unable to afford it. 

The following is a summary of visits provided to peop 
in New London in 1990: 

Skilled Nursing 
Rehabilitation Therapies 
Home Health Aide 

Private Duty Nurse (2 hr visit) 
Certified Nursing Assistant (2 hr visit) 
Companion (2 hr visit) 
Homemaker and Respite Care 

Pediatric Nursing 
Child Health Clinic 
Parent/Child Program 
Social Service 

Hospice Volunteer 
Bereavement Follow-up 

Blood Pressure Screening 
Foot Care 

Flu Shots 
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Thank you for your continued support of our agency and 
its services. Your town representatives on the Board of 
Trustees are Nancy Doolittle and Bryan Jones. Trustees 
of our other boards who also live in your town are Neil 
P. Atkins, Sonja Jacobson, and Mary Teach. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Cheryl Blik 
President and CEO 

New London Cemetery Commission 

The three active cemeteries, located in Elkins, West 
Part, and Old Main Street are supervised by the 
Commissioners. The care, maintenance, and grave 
openings are managed by the Town Highway Department, 
Richard Lee, Superintendent under the direction of Fred 
Welch, Administrative Assistant. 

We have had a slight increase in 1990 relative to 
interments. We have 22 in Old Main Street Cemetery, 12 
in Elkins, and 8 in West Part Cemetery. There were 36 
new graves sold in the 3 cemeteries combined and new lots 
will be lined out in the spring in Elkins and Old Main 
Street. 

The Commission has always tried to be aware of varied 
interests relative to lot and grave landscaping, 
decorations, and plantings. In our lenient approach we 
have found many shrubs, bushes, and plantings to have 
obscured family memorials and encroached on adjacent 
lots. Some have been severely trimmed or removed, others 
will be this year. We suggest that lot owners observe 
their lots annually and take necessary steps to contain 
their lots in bounds. 

Respectfully Submitted 
Walton W. Chadwick ’91 

Charles M. Hafner ’92 

Marion E. Chadwick Hafner ’93 
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EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT REPORT 

The program for updating the emergency lights at the Town 
Hall continues with another phase completed in 1990. 

The Emergency Management Committee has completed it’s 

draft of the Town’s Master Emergency Plan. It is 
currently being reviewed and edited by all Town 
departments. 

As always, your questions, concerns and advice are 
encouraged. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Stuart F. Sidmore, Jr. 

Director 

NEW LONDON WELFARE DEPARTMENT 

This is the annual report of the Welfare Department of 
the Town of New London for the year 1990. 

Total expenditures for the year amount to $4,370. 
Although the majority of payments were for food and 
rent, there were significant allocations for medications. 

It is significant to note that the case load and depths 
of need have increased dramatically with the current 
economic climate. This is reflected in the substantial 
budget increase for 1991. 

Respectfully submitted, 
John Woodward, Welfare Officer 
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REPORT OF 

THE NEW LONDON POLICE DEPARTMENT 

My first year as your Chief of Police presented many 
challenges ( or “opportunities " ), as well as personal 
growth. An extensive testing and screening process 

resulted in the hiring of several new officers ( one of 
which was the addition of a sixth officer as approved at 
last years town meeting ). Our officers are well trained, 
conscientious, and dedicated to their highly responsible 
duties of serving and protecting the residents of New 
London. And yes, due to the numerous complaints about 
speeding (especially on Main Street ), the increased 
blue-light activity will continue! 

Sergeant David Seastrand successfully completed 
exhaustive training in the D.A.R.E. program ( Drug and 
Alcohol Resistance Education ), which is receiving 
tremendous national recognition. David is currently 
working with the Kearsarge Regional school system - 6th 
grade two days a week. He is excited about this unique 
program and would be happy to explain the concept to any 
interested parents, children or organizations. 

In closing I would like to express my sincere 
appreciation and thanks to the residents, Selectmen, and 
Administrative Assistant for their cooperation, 
assistance and support during this past year. 

Listed below are the comparison figures for 1989 and 
1990. The general population growth and economic times 
reflect an increase in police activities. 

Criminal Activities 

1989 1990 

Assaults 4 3) 

Burglaries 18 16 
Criminal Mischief 37, 36 

Thefts 64 95 

Miscellaneous 71 fa 

Total Arrests 92 141 

Total Lock-ups 66 101 
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Motor Vehicle Activity 

Summonses 859 892 
Warnings Pele 1,588 
Accident Reports 99 Wd, 
Total Injuries 18 19 
Fatalities 0 0 
DWI 26 35 

Calls For Service 

Responses To Burglar Alarms 391 347 
Responses To Fire Calls 54 50 
Money Escorts 113 66 
Missing Persons 17 18 
Requests For House Checks 192 224 
Domestic Complaints 2 30 
Complaints On Vehicles 228 247 
Suspicious Persons 106 134 
Aids To Ambulance Crew 54 94 
Suspicious Vehicles 144 191 
Animal Complaints 103 
Miscellaneous 1915) 2225007 

Respectfully submitted, 
Stuart F. Sidmore, Jr. 

Chief Of Police 
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PERAMBULATION OF THE TOWN LINE 
BETWEEN NEW LONDON AND SPRINGFIELD 

At the request of the Selectmen of New London and Springfield, the New Lon- 

don Conservation Commission has located and photographed the markers on the 

line between the two towns with the following results: 

MARKER #1 

Beginning at the northwest corner of New London the northeast corner of 

Sunapee on the south side of Springfield at a large yellow birch tree and stone 

with various markings (some overgrown and worn) 1939, 1946, 1953, 1960, 1974, 

(1983 and 1988 painted). Evidence on photograph 1 on town records. 

MARKER #2 

From Marker #1 head 96 degrees — 869 yards plus or minus to a stone in 

the bottom of the wall on the south side of an old road about 40 feet from the 

corner. Various markings (some worn) TL 1918, 1925, 1932, 1939, 1946, 1953, 

1960, 1974, 1988. Evidence on photograph 2 on town records. 

MARKER #3 

Follow 96 degree course, 1,060 yards plus or minus to a stone on a ledge of 

top of hill. The stone is about 8 feet south of a wall and has various markings 

(some worn) TL 1904, 1911, 1925, 1932, 1940, 1953, 1960, 1974, 1990. Evidence 

on photograph 3 on town records. 

MARKER #4 

Follow 96 degree course 960 yards plus or minus to stone post beside state road 

marked TL NL & S 1904, 1911, 1932, 1939, 1946, 1953, 1960, 1974, 1988. Evidence 

on photograph 4 on town records. 

MARKER #5 

Course 96 degrees across cove to store post on Colby Point marked TL NL 

& S 53, 60, 74, 88. Evidence on photograph 5 on town records. 

MARKER #6 
Course 96 degrees to concrete monument on the shore of Little Sunapee off 

Golf Course marked TL NL & S 1953, 1960, 1974, 1988. Evidence on photograph 

6 on town records. 

MARKER #7 

Then course 32 degrees about 70 yards plus or minus to a stone post on the 

north side of highway marked TL NL & S 1925, 1932, 1939, 1940, 1953, 1960, 

1974, and 1988. Evidence on photograph 7 on town records. 

MARKER #8 
Continue course 32 degrees plus or minus 401 yards to a stone post on north 

side of the road from New London to Twin Lake Village marked TL NL & S 

1925, 1932, 1939, 1946, 1953, 1960, 1974, 1988. Evidence on photograph 8 on 

town records. 
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MARKER #9 

Continue course 32 degrees plus or minus 1,133 yards to a stone on south 

end of a wall marked TL 1918, 1925, 1932, 1939, 1946, 1953, 1960, 1974. (Not 

found yet). 

MARKER #10 

Continue course plus or minus 429 yards to a stone on an old wall marked 

TL 1918, 1925, 1932, 1939, 1946, 1953, 1960, 1974, 1988. Evidence on photograph 

10 on town records. 

MARKER #11 

Continue course plus or minus 1760 yards to a stake and a stone at the corner 

of NE New London, and NW Wilmot on the southeast Springfield line. All mark- 

ings are worn and grown over to a great extent. Evidence on photograph 11 on 

town records. 

In witness whereof we have hereunto set our hands on the dates indicated 

in the year 1990. 

We approve of this perambulation. 

RICHARD S. KIDDER, JR. 

CONSTANCE A. JONES 

LOUISE B. JACEQICZ 

Springfield Board of Selectmen 

LUTHER CHILDS 

VERNON ADAMS 

ZEKE CURTIS 

GEORGE PAYNE 

New London, for the Selectmen 
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Kearsarge’s New London Graduates 

The following members from Kearsarge Regional High School 
of the class of 1990 are listed in our records as 
residents of the town of New London; 

Amanda Bailey Justin Jaggard 
Richard Beliveay Sean Keating 
James Blanchard Jennifer Kidder 
Robert Brown Jessica Lamy 
DaNiella Canuto Stephanie Manus 
Christopher Clark Vickie Murphy 
Jennifer Clark Darren Ouellette 
Larry De Sorbo Nathan Parrish 
Angus Durocher Kristina Perry 
David Evans Lance Romanoff 
Chris Ferland Adriane Schultz 
Paul Gallagher David Serrell 
Robert Gingrich Jason Smith 
Elizabeth Gordon Amy Steel 
Melanie Green Sarah Tucker 

Jeremy Hathorn Astrid Wetherall 
Michael Hayward Diana Wetherall 

Respectfully Submitted 
Sue Dugdale 
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REPORT OF 

TREE WARDEN 

For the fourth consecutive year, the Town of New London 
received the TREE CITY, USA award in recognition of the 
tree maintenance and planting program. Two large Norway 
Maples were planted on Main Street near the exit of the 
Middle School to commemorate the occasion. 

The town spent $4,156.27 on planting new trees including 
a $400 gift from family and friends of Virginia Stone. A 
Norway Maple was planted on the Sargent Common in her 
memory. 

The town also spent $4,215 pruning, fertilizing and 
cabling the majority of existing trees on Main Street 
from Pleasant Street west to Pressy Court. 
Unfortunately, many Sugar Maples, as well as, the Copper 
Beech in front of Ausbon Sargent’s home (a 1931 Wedding 
Anniversary gift from his wife) are all dead or dying 
because of inrrecoverable salt damage. 

Respectfully submitted 
Robert Fraley, Tree Warden. 
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TRACY MEMORIAL LIBRARY 
1990 ANNUAL REPORT 

The past year has been in many ways the busiest in the history of Tracy 

Memorial Library. Circulation of library materials increased from 57,066 in 1989 

to 65,772 in 1990. The Library registered 1,675 new borrowers, bringing the total 

registration to a new high of 3,838. This number includes many summer residents, 

non-resident students from the Kearsarge Regional School District, and adult 

borrowers who pay a yearly non-resident fee. New acquisitions numbered 1,751 

for books and 229 for non-print items such as audio-books, videocassettes and 

compact discs. 

With a large and impressive vote of confidence at the March Town Meeting, 

funds were allotted for the renovation and addition to the Library, and at a ground- 

breaking ceremony on April 19 our hopes and dreams became a reality. In a spirit 

of remarkable cooperation Engelberth Construction, Inc., Ingram/Wallace Ar- 

chitects, and the staff and Board of Trustees of Tracy Library worked together 

to finish Phase I, the new addition, by the end of 1990. 

The Library staff, working under conditions that would try the patience of a 

saint, accomplished a miracle: they were able to provide the usual services to 

the Town while construction was proceeding. These difficult conditions were no 

less onerous for our host of loyal volunteers, all of whom remained cheerful and 

calm as they continued to deliver their services to the public. 

Phase II, the renovation of the old building, should be completed in early 1991. 

We are certain that Tracy Memorial Library will be one of the most attractive 

and efficient libraries in New England — a library of which the townspeople can 

be justly proud. 

Respectfully sumbitted, 

GEORGE S. DOOLITTLE 

Chairman 

LINDA MILLER 

Co-Chairman 

JANICE KIDDER 

ANN LINEHAN 

NANCY MULLER 

NANCY NICHOLS 

ROBERT WALLACE 

Board of Trustees 
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TRACY MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

Annual Report — 1990 

Cash On Hand, January 1, 1990 $ 15,584.77 

Income: 

Town Appropriation $109,945.00 

Trust Funds 22,443.48 

Fines 2,282.25 

Lost/Damaged Materials 139.10 

Gifts and Memonials 5,890.00 

Non-Resident Fees 2,468.00 

Copier 1,278.70 

Interest Lofo.do 

Total Income 146,022.32 

Expenditures: 

Personnel 99,902.38 

Books and Related Materials 21,586.58 

Supplies 4,847.01 

Maintenance 9,833.00 

Audit 975.00 

Public Relations 769.28 

Travel and Dues 484.49 

Total Expenses 138,397.74 

Cash on Hand December 31, 1990 $ 23,209.35 

Report of Improvement Fund 

Balance of Fund, January 1, 1990 $223,403.44 

Balance of Fund, December 31, 1990 $ 44,838.00 

Other Memorial and Gift Funds 

Balance of Funds, January 1, 1990 $ 17,870.32 

Balance of Funds, December 31, 1990 $ 29,985.78 
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May 20 

June 20 

June 20 

June 20 

August 1 

August 1 

October 25 

October 25 

1990 REPORT OF DECISIONS 
OF ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

MARILYN B. ANDREWS for a Variance, to the terms of 

Article V, Section Al of the Zoning Ordinance, to construct 

a garage/accessory building on a lot loce, without a primary 

residence, located on Camp Sunapee Road (Map 33, Lot 5). 

DENIED 

GLENN AND STEPHANIE HOEFT for a Special Excep- 

tion, as provided in Article XV, Section C, of the Zoning Or- 

dinance, to fill a ravine on property, located at 5 Woodland 

Trace (Map 94, Lot 14), with approximately 1,000 cubic yards 
of fil. GRANTED 

MARILYN B. ANDREWS REHEARING for a Variance to 

the terms of Article V, Section Al, of the Zoning Ordinance, 

to construct a garage/accessory building on a lot without a 

primary residence, located on Camp Sunapee Road (Map 

33, Lot 5). GRANTED 

KEARSARGE COMMUNITY PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH 

for a Variance to the terms of Article II, Section 10(b) of 

the Zoning Ordinance, to allow a sign larger than four (4) 

square feet on property located on Route 11 (Map 122, Lot 

29). GRANTED 

RICHARD B. KELLOM for a Special Exception, as provided 

in Article IV, Section C(8) of the Zoning Ordinance to move 

a storage/boat house from its present location to a site nearer 

Pleasant Lake, on property located on Bunker Road (Map 

62, Lot 28). GRANTED 

GERARD R. AND MARTHA HOAR for a Variance to the 

terms of Article VI, Section C of the Zoning Ordinance to 

construct an addition to their home, with less than side yard 

requirements, located on Tracy Road (Map 117, Lot 4). 

DENIED 

LAURIDS T. LAURIDSEN, III for an appeal from an Ad- 

ministrative Order from the Board of Selectmen to add an 

addition to the west side of the existing building, and to add 

an addition to the rear of the existing building, on property 

located on King Ridge Road (Map 131, Lot 11). GRANTED 

ROBERT L. WARD appeal for a Variance to the terms of 

Article IX of the Zoning Ordinance to use the rear section 

of property, located on Main Street (Map 85, Lot 6), for off- 

street parking for the Grange Hall property. GRANTED 
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October 25 

October 25 

November 14 

November 14 

December 5 

December 14 

December 14 

NEW LONDON HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION, INC. FOR 

NEW LONDON RETIREMENT COMMUNITY—GLEN- 

GAE for a Special Exception, as provided in Article XX, Sec- 

tion E of the Zoning Ordinance, to allow incursion into land 

described as “‘wetland’’ for an access roadway, buildings, 

utilities and dredge a detention/retention pond for storm- 

water runoff mitigation, on property located at Lakeside and 

County Roads (Map 72, Lot 33-2). GRANTED 

LARRY DUFAULT for an appeal from an administrative order 

of the Planning Board (August 18, 1990), regarding parking 

on Grange Hall property (Map 85, Lot 5) located on Main 

Street. TABLED to December 5. 

LAURIDS T. LAURIDSEN III HEARING, as requested by 

the Board of Selectmen, for a Special Exception, as pro- 

vided in Article IV (C5) to add a 6’x23’ addition to the west 

side of the existing building, and to add a 25’x15’ addition 

to the rear of the existing building, on property located on 

King Ridge Road (Map 131, Lot 11). GRANTED 

NORMAN LEGER for an appeal for relief from an ad- 

ministrative order by the Board of Selectmen (building per- 

mit) to demolish and replace a storage building on his prop- 

erty located on Whipple Court (Map 84, Lot 16). 

GRANTED 

ROBERT L. WARD, REHEARING on the appeal for a 

Variance to the terms of Article X, of the Zoning Ordinance, 

for permission to lease a portion of property for a parking 

area to be used with the adjoining Grange Hall property, 

located on Main Street (Map 85, Lot 7) DENIED 

JESSEMAN ASSOCIATES, PC FOR FIRST CHURCH OF 

CHRIST SCIENTIST for a Special Exception as provided 

in Article XV, Section C(10) of the Zoning Ordinance to use 

property located at the corner of Main and Williams Street 

(Map 73, Lot 44) to house the First Church of Christ Scien- 

tist. DENIED 

LARRY DUFAULT appeal from an administrative order of 

the Planning Board tabled to January 23, 1991. 
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM 
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. 

1991 WARNER AREA CENTER OPERATING BUDGET 

Personnel: 

Area Center Director $16,537.00 

Fringe Benefits 7,680.00 

Other Costs: 
Program Travel: 5,714 miles — 

@ 21¢ per mile 1,250.00 
Rent 2,720.00 
Telephone 1,600.00 
Postage 100.00 
Office Supplies 300.00 
Advertising 50.00 
Staff Development 75.00 
Publications 100.00 
Liability and Fire Contents Insurance 150.00 

TOTAL BUDGET: 

Federal Share: $ 2,228.00 ( 7.3%) 
Town Share: $28,334.00 (92.7%) 

(All towns in catchment area) $30,562.00 (100%) 

Wage and Salary Request Form 

$24,217.00 

__ 6,345.00 
$30,562.00 

Barbara Chellis, Area Director, Kearsarge Valley Area Center 

Present Salary — $15,750 Recommended New Salary $16,537 

New London Line Item: 

Expended: 1987 $1,468 1988 $1,528 1989 $1,757 

Expended: June 30, 1990 $1,845 Approp. 1990 $1,845 

Request 1991: $1,937 
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1990 SUMMARY OF SERVICES 
PROVIDED TO NEW LONDON RESIDENTS 

BY THE WARNER AREA CENTER 
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM 

Services 

CONGREGATE MEALS — All senior citizens are 

welcome to our congregate meal site for nutritious hot 

meals, social/recreational activities, and field trips. Value 

— $5.16 per meal. 

MEALS-ON-WHEELS — Provides the delivery of 

nutritionally-balanced hot meals to homebound elderly 

or adult residents five days per week. Value — $5.24 per 

meal. 

FUEL ASSISTANCE — Income eligible households, 

particularly the elderly, are assisted with energy 

costs during the heating season. The average assistance 

per household was $377.05. 

WOMEN, INFANTS AND CHILDREN — Provides 

specific foods to supplement daily diet of pregnant or 

nursing women as well as children under 5. Participants 

receive medical/nutritional screening, counseling and 

education. Value includes monetary value of vouchers and 

clinical services. $38.50 per unit. 

COMMODITY SUPPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM 

— is a nutrition program that offers participants free 

nutritious foods to supplement their daily diet. The 

program serves children under six years of age, women 

during pregnancy and up to 12 months after the birth 

of their baby. Food is distributed from our Concord 

warehouse. Value $38.50 per unit. 

*(An individual may not be enrolled in both the WIC Pro- 

gram and CSFP, but a family may have members on both 

programs.) 

USDA COMMODITY FOODS — Distribution of Fed- 

eral Surplus Foods to income eligible people through 

scheduled mass distributions. 

Value of Butter—$1.28/1 Ib. block 

Value of Corn Meal—$.59/5 Ib. bag 

Value of Egg Mix—$.57/6 oz. bag 

Value of Flour—$.72/5 lb. bag 

Value of Green Beans—$.33/1 Ib. can 

Value of Honey—$1.23/1.5 lb. bottle 

Value of Peanute Butter—$1.68/2 Ib. can 
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# Of 

Units Of Households/ 

Service 

2 Meals 

1,038 meals 

15 appli- 

cations 

52 voucher 

packets 

30 food 

packages 

157 butter 

2 corn meal 

8 egg mix 

126 flour 

35 gr. beans 

65 honey 

64 Peanut 

Butter 

Persons 

1 Person 

7 persons 

15 house- 

holds 

6 persons 

5 persons 

31 house- 

holds 

46 persons 

Value 

$10.32 

$5,439.12 

$5,655.81 

$1,898.50 

$1,092.50 

$ 200.96 

1.18 

4.56 

90.72 

11.55 

7995 

107.52 



Value of Pork-$2.39/29 oz. can 

Value of Raisins-$.88/1 lb. box 

Value of Vegetarian Beans—$.33/1 lb. can 

EMERGENCY FOOD PANTRIES — Provides up 

to three days of food for people facing temporary 

food crisis. Value — $3.00 per meal. 

INFORMATION AND REFERRAL — CAP provides 

utility, landlord/tenant, legal and health counseling, 

as well as referrals for housing, transportation and 

other concerns to anyone in need. Value of service 

varies from client to client. 
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65 pork 

65 raisins 

94 veg. beans 

36 meals 4 households 

5 persons 

not tracked not tracked 

TOTAL: 

155.35 

57.20 

31.02 

$ 108.00 

$14,944.26 



Record of Services 
For Twelve Months Ending September 30, 1990 

New London Hospital, Inc. 

1989 % Change 
Admissions 1,135 (3.8) 

Average Length of 
Stay (in days) t F (10.9) 

Patient Days 
Medical/Surgical (5.4) 

Intensive Care 15.5 
Obstetrics (33.6) 

Total Patient Days (3.9) 
Average Daily Census : (3.7) 

Utilization 
Operating Room Patients 
Outpatient Surgery 
Emergency Room Visits 9,340 
Physical Therapy Treatments 18,510 
Laboratory Tests 213,384 
X-rays 
Mammograms 1,679 
CT Scans 
MRI Scans 

10,463 

293 
161 

Full-time Employees 243 

William P. Clough Extended Care Center, 

Skilled Nursing Facility 
Average Length of Stay 
Percent Occupancy 
Patient Days 
Discharges 
Average Daily Census 

Intermediate Care Facility 
Average Length of Stay 
Percent Occupancy 
Patient Days 
Discharges 
Average Daily Census 

New London Hospital Association 
Uncompensated Care 

& Uncompensated Care 
Charity care, bad debi, and care 

uncompensated by Government. 

Patient Care Revenue 

(Millions) 

1990 1989 1988 
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE 

NEW LONDON HOSPITAL AUXILIARY 

The Auxiliary of New London Hospital holds as it’s 
primary mission the rendering of volunteer service and 
financial support to New London Hospital. Although 1990 
has been a challenging period for volunteer 
organizations, the Auxiliary is pleased to report that 

during this time we have successfully increased our 
membership, our volunteer services and our financial 
assistance in support of the New London Hospital 
community. 

The Auxiliary’s 430 members put their time and talents to 
work in a variety of ways. In the area of in-hosptial 
service, over 100 men and women gave 9,000 hours of 
assistance in various departments of the hosptial and at 
the William P. Clough Extended Care Center, ten 
volunteers were honored by the Auxiliary this year for 
in-hosptial service in excess of 100 hours each. 
Director of Volunteer Services, Adele Morris, has done an 
outstanding job of co-ordinating programs and projects 
for the hospital’s volunteer department. Among her many 
accomplishments this year were the following: 

i the production of videotape on specific volunteer 
jobs within the hospital. 

ii. the restructuring of a summer volunteen program for 
23 twelve to seventeen year olds. 

iii. the publication of an updated, instructional 
"Volunteer Handbook". 

Each of these projects involved the expertise and 
co-operation of other individuals. 

The Auxiliary gratefully acknowledges the Kearsarge 
Valley Magazine - Hi Tech Video team for the opportunity 
it provided to film the volunteers in action; Nancy Ulf 
for her superb directorship of the Volunteen Program, and 
the volunteer office staff for their commitment to the 
Volunteer Handbook effort. 
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Auxiliary volunteers also work within the community , 
assisting with the Red Cross Bloodmobile Drives and the 
organization and delivery of Meals on Wheels five days a 
week, all year long. Many of these individuals have 
participated in these programs since their inception in 
our community. 

The Auxiliary depends upon volunteer help in the area of 

fundraising as well. For the 1989/1990 year, $7,550 was 
presented to six scholarship recipients as a result of 
the Scholarship Tennis Tournament in June; the Easy Aces 
Bridge tournament and the Barn Players Pillow rental 
program. The beneficiaries of these Auxiliary 
Scholarships are two, third-year nursing students 
currently employed at New London Hospital; a hospital 
employee pursuing a Masters Degree in hospital 

administration; two New London Hospital A B C Daycare 
students, and a Sunapee High Shcool graduate, currently 
enrolled in the University of New Hampshire’s School of 
Nursing. 

In addition to scholarship gifts, funds totaling $25,714 
were raised from the Auxiliary’s work table sales at 
Hosptial Day and from our Spring and Fall rummage sales. 
With these funds, completion of the E.C.C. sunroom became 
a reality. In 1990 the Auxiliary provided funds for the 
hosptial to purchase wall clocks for rooms in the medical 
surgical wing, three new TV’s for the Birthing Center, 
and monies to co-sponsor the A B C Daycare music program 
were also donated. 

Educational programs sponsored by the New London Hospital 
Auxiliary are open to the public. These programs take 
place at the first Baptist Church, on the first Wednesday 
of each month, October through May, at 12:30 pm. 

In conclusion, the Board of Directors of the Auxiliary 
wishes to express its sincere appreciation to the 
community at large for its generosity and assistance with 
auxiliary projects throughout the year. The supportive 
teamwork of this community makes a world of difference to 
neighbors in need. 
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The 1990 Auxiliary Board of Directors are: 

Executive Committee 

Elynor Taylor, President 
Joan Clarke, lst VP 
Pam Low, 2nd VP 

Beth Mathewson, Assis. Treas. 

Directors 

Sheridan Danforth 

Janice Eberly 
Carol Frucht 
Betty Horne 

Joan Ward, Rec. Sec. 
Marylee Atkins, Corres.Sec. 
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Andi Steel, Trea. 

Francis Hoke, Past Pres. 

Adele Morris 
Mary Teach 
Hope Howard 

Respectfully submitted, 
Elynor Taylor, President 
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Re Rh a AE OR cnet 

ANNUAL REPORT 

for the year ending 

31 DECEMBER 1990 
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Towns of New London and Springfield 
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NEW LONDON-SPRINGFIELD 
WATER SYSTEM PRECINCT 

PRECINCT WARRANT 

Towns of New London and Springfield, N.H. 

To the inhabitants of the New London-Springfield Water System Precinct in 

the counties of Merrimack and Sullivan, respectively, qualified to vote in Precinct 

affairs: 

You are hereby notified to meet at the Town Hall in New London, New Hamp- 

shire, on Tuesday, March 19, 1991, at 3:00 p.m. to act on the following subjects: 

(Note: By law the meeting must open before voting starts. Therefore, the meeting 

and polls will open at 3:00 p.m. At 3:15 p.m. the meeting will recess, but the 

polls will remain open until 8:00 p.m. The meeting will reconvene at 7:00 p.m. 

to act on Articles 1 through 8.) 

ARTICLE 1: To choose all necessary officers for the coming year. 

ARTICLE 2: To hear the reports of officers, committees and auditors and pass 

any vote relating thereto. 

ARTICLE 3: To set the salaries of all officers for the coming year. 

ARTICLE 4: To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the following 

sums to defray precinct charges for the ensuing year: 

Actual Budget 

1990 1991 

Salaries, benefits, taxes $ 79,739 $ 92,500 

Maintenance 7,192 8,000 

Utilities 3,583 4,000 

Supplies 15,795 15,000 

Insurance 15,809 17,000 

Administration 3,327 6,000 

Audit Expense 2,400 2,400 

Legal Expense 125 3,000 

Election Expense 770 900 

Engineering Review -0- 2,000 

Equipment (Capitalized) 2,453 3,000 

Contingency 0 1,000 - 

Customer Supplies L555 1,000 
Interest 0 500 

Total $132,748 $156,300 

ARTICLE 5: To see if the Precinct will vote to transfer thirty thousand dollars 

($30,000) from the General Fund Surplus to the Water Storage Tank Capital 

Reserve Fund. 



ARTICLE 6: To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of one hundred forty thousand dollars ($140,000.00) to be paid into the Water 

Storage Tank Capital Reserve Fund, previously established. 

ARTICLE 7: To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum 

of forty thousand dollars ($40,000) for the study, evaluation and preliminary design 

of alternative water systems to comply with the Safe Drinking Water Act, as 

amended. 

ARTICLE 8: To see if the Precinct will vote to authorize the Commissioners 

to issue notes and incur debt in anticipation of taxes and revenue in order to 

pay current maintenance and operating expenses, as provided in RSA 33:7. 

D. KENT WOODGER 

Chairman 

KENNETH R. JACQUES 

JAMES A. CRICENTI 

Commissioners 

New London-Springfield Water 

System Precinct 

A true copy of warrant-Attest 

D. KENT WOODGER 

Chairman 

KENNETH R. JACQUES 

JAMES A. CRICENTI 

Commissioners 

New London-Springfield Water 

System Precinct 



REPORT TO THE VOTERS — 1990 

The annual meeting of the New London-Springfield Water System Precinct in 

March of 1990 saw the election of John Clough as Water Commissioner. After 

having been sworn into office Clough was unable to fulfill his term because of 

conflicts, and Commissioners Woodger and Jacques appointed James Cricenti to 
fill the position for one year. 

The major expenditure items approved by the voters at the last Annual Precinct 

Meeting was $170,000 for the completion of the Knights Hill grid. The Commis- 

sioners were able to obtain the services of Clarke Co. Construction to dig the 

trench, set the pipe and backfill the trench. The work was completed in a timely 

and safe manner, with a sum of money still retained to be able to put down an 

asphalt overlay on Knights Hill Road in the spring of 1991. 

Due to the economic recession that the building industry has been experienc- 

ing for the last few months, applications for new services have been very minimal. 

The Commissioners, therefore, were able to devote much time to reviewing the 

Rules, Regulations and Rates of the Precinct, and make revisions, additions, and 

deletions, where necessary. 

Finally, in regards to compliance with the Safe Drinking Water Act, the State 

of New Hampshire has revised their rules and regulations concerning the stan- 

dards and limitations of drinking water in public systems to conincide with the 

guidelines set by the Federal government. With these rules in place the State 

of New Hampshire has mandated that all public water systems in the State, that 

come under these guidelines, shall comply by June 1993. The use of either a 

waiver for avoidance or an exemption, are not viable options. The New London- 

Springfield Water System Precinct must move ahead and formulate plans for com- 

plying and executing them in a timely fashion. 

COMMISSIONERS: 

D. KENT WOODGER, Chairman 

KENNETH R. JACQUES 

JAMES A. CRICENTI 

RICHARD K. LaPORTE 

Superintendent 

ANNA L. GREEN 

Treasurer 

JEFFREY DONAHUE 

Clerk 

J. F BIEWENER 

Auditor 



JOHN F. BIEWENER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

JOHNSON HILL ROAD 

SOUTH SUTTON; NH 03273 

TELEPHONE 
603-938-2740 

Commissioners 
New London-Springfield Water System Precinct 
New London, NH 03257 

Gentlemen: 

I have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of the New London- 

Springfield Water System Precinct as of December 31, 1990, and 
the related statements of revenue and expenditures and cash flows 
for the year then ended, in accordance with standards established 
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. All 
information in these financial statements is the representation 
of the management of the New London-Springfield Water System 
Precinct. 

A review consists principally of inquiries of Precinct personnel 
and analytical procedures applied to financial data. It is sub- 
stantially less in scope than an audit in accordance with gener- 
ally accepted auditing standards, the objective of which is the 
expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken 
as a whole. Accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. 

Based on my review, I am not aware of any material modifications 
that should be made to the accompanying financial statements in 
order for them to be in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 1989, 

were audited by me and I expressed an unqualified opinion on 
them in my report dated January 26, 1990, but I have not per- 
formed any auditing procedures since that date. 

John F. Biewener, CPA 

January 21, 1991 
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EXHIBIT B 
New London-Springfield Water System Precinct 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES 
(Years Ended December 31, 1990 and 1989) 

1990 

Actual 
Revenue from Operations 

Water Charges $121,012 
Interest 37536 
Sale of Supplies to Customers 2,212 
Sale of Fixed Assets 201 
Sundry apaos 

Total Operating Revenues 134,254 
Exvenditures for Operations 

Salaries and Wages 63,696 

Payroll Tax, Pensions, Health Insurance 16,043 
Maintenance dip oe 

Utilities ey Ie 
Precinct Supplies 15,795 
Insurance 15,809 

Interest on Short-term Debt -0- 
Administration and Contingency apa 
Accounting 2,400 

Legal 125 
Annual Meeting 770 
Engineering Review -0- 
Equipment 2,453 
Customer Supplies teooS 

Total Operating Expenditures 132,748 

Gain/ (Loss) from Operations 1,506 

Qther Income/ (Expense) 
Precinct Taxes 47,408 
Withdrawals, Capital Reserve Fund LT po D2 
Due from Cap. Res. Fund for 1990 Costs, 

Knights Hill Road Project 12,897 
Total Other Income/ (Expense) 177,857 

Net Available for Special Articles 179,363 
Expenditures, Current-year Special Articles 

‘90 Art. 5, Knights Hill Road Project (130,449) 
‘90 Art. 6, Water Storage Tank Cap. Res. (50,000) 

Total Expenditures, Current-yr. Spec. Art. (180,449) 
Prior-year Appropriated Funds Not 

Required to be Spent 

Net Operating Fund Surplus/ (Deficit), 
Current Year 

=a 

$_ (1,086) 

Budget 

$136,108 
3,130 
1,150 

600 
8,000 

148,988 

67,175 
16,745 
8,000 
3,700 

12,000 
14,000 

500 
7,000 
2,400 

AEE a Aas 
141,440 

7,548 

27,701 
170,000 

=ou 

197,701 

205,249 

(170,000) 

_(50,000) 
(220,000) 

=0= 

$(14,751) | 

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these 
financial statements. See accountant's report. 

1989 

Actual 

$113,785 

seated Me 
134,118 

58,530 
15,048 
7,105 
3,589 

10,631 
12,888 

=Q- 

4,057 
2,200 

=O— 

918 
2,125 
5,086 
8,220 

130,397 

Jeree 

134,422 
=0— 

138,143 

(153,000) 

1,023 

$ (13,834) 



EXHIBIT C 

New London-Springfield Water System Precinct 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

(Years Ended December 31, 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Gain/ (Loss) from Operations 
Precinct Taxes 
Engineering Costs, 

Adjustments to Reconcile Gain from Operations 
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

(Increase) /Decrease in Accounts Receivable 

Special Articles 

(Increase) /Decrease in Inventories 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Withdrawal, Knights Hill Road Cap. Res. Fund 
Purchase Equipment and Facilities: 

‘90 Art. 5, Knights Hill Road Extension 
'89 Art. 5, Domestic Meters 

‘88 Art. 5, Radio Equipment 
'88 Art. 6, Domestic Meters 
‘86 Art. 7, Commercial Meters 

Purchase Capital Reserve Fund C.D.'s: 
Knights Hill Road 
Water Storage Tank 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 

Net Decrease in Cash 

Cash at Beginning of Year 

Cash at End of Year 

1990 and 1989) 

1990 

$ 1,506 
47,408 

~ 

(50,000) 

(65,686) 

(8,094) 

32,308 

$ 24,214 

1989 

> re SY 
134,422 
(5,000) 

10,487 
(227) 

(6,015) 

137,388 

ars 

(37,271) 
(838) 
(162) 

(2,262) 

(50,000) 
(50,000) 

(140,533) 

aye 

(3,145) 

35,453 

$ 32,308 

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these 
financial statements. See accountant's report. 



New London-Springfield Water System Precinct 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(For the years ended December 31, 1990 and 1989) 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The income accounts of the New London-Springfield Water System 
Precinct are maintained on a cash basis, recording income as it 
is collected. The income accounts are converted to an accrual 
basis at year-end. 

Expense accounts record items only when cash is disbursed. The 
expense accounts are converted to an accrual basis at year-end. 
The inventory of supplies is priced at cost. Based ona 
physical inventory taken once a year at year-end, the increase 
or decrease in the inventory value is charged or credited to 
supplies expense. The policy of the Precinct is to maintain a 
uniform level of supplies inventory for Precinct use in its 
operations. In 1986, the Precinct required customers to 
install protective equipment to prevent possible contamination 
of the water system. As a convenience to these customers, the 

Precinct purchases supplies of protective equipment for re-sale 
to customers, to assure the most expeditious installation. 

Facilities and equipment are stated at undepreciated cost. Gifts 
and contributions of water facilities are recorded at fair market 
value at the time received. Assets disposed of or abandoned are 
written off at cost against the appropriate asset account, and 
charged to the Plant and Equipment Fund balance. 

Note 2 — Precinct Tax 

The Precinct Tax has no restrictions. However, income from ‘this 

tax is used primarily to pay principal and interest on outstand- 
ing debt, to pay for facilities and equipment, and to increase 
capital reserve funds. The tax is reported as Other Income to 
avoid distortion of gain or loss from water operations. 

See accountant's report. 



New London-Springfield Water System Precinct 

SCHEDULE 1 - WATER PRECINCT EQUIPMENT 

Balance, Beginning of Year 

Additions: Leak detector 
Portable generator 
Emergency lights 
Copier 
Locator 
Ditch pump 
Radio equipment 
Pipe saw 
PH meter 
Hydrant defuser 

Total Additions 

Withdrawals: Ditch pump 
Copier 

Total Withdrawals 

Balance, End of Year 

SCHEDULE 2 - WATER PRECINCT FACILITIES 

Balance, Beginning of Year 

Additions: Service connections 

Residential meters 

Commercial meters 

Knights Hill Road water main 
Total Additions 

Withdrawals: Garage door 

Balance, End of Year 

See accountant's report. 

1990 
$ 105,941 

$ 107,994 

$1,282,483 

$1,415,617 

1989 
$ 100,667 

$ 105,941 

40,308 

= (ja 

$1,282,483 
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